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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more

suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will

be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the issuer. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DU S

RESULTS £S5
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008
—T——F ZE-TF ZTTNEFE ZTTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 1,779,646 2,666,341 3,167,965 2,229,529 1,269,676
Profit/(loss) before FT8 R AR T~
income tax (Es18) (223,371) 36,820 34,070 (159,499) (87,636)
Income tax credit/ FrisRifmE
(expense) (ZH) (17,359) (14,503) (17,834) 23,371 15,036
Profit/(loss) after FriSEi1& B FE4Z 61
income tax but RESATEF
before non- (E18)
controlling interests (240,730) 22,317 16,236 (136,128) (72,600)
Non-controlling FEPEHI M =
interests (331) (425) 475 35 10
Profit/(loss) attributable  ZN A &A% B2 fE1G
to the shareholders wAL (&)
of the Company (241,061) 21,892 16,711 (136,093) (72,590)

The operating results of the discontinued operation has been incorporated in

the above table according to the nature.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

BE AERFEFMER

As at 31st March
R=A=+—H

BRUIEERBHEREERAEEOSH EXRTP -

2011 2010 2009 2008

—E2——F —ZT-TF —ETNF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET FHET FHET

Total Assets BERE 2,044,700 2,142,256 3,201,416 2,824,501 2,650,655

Total liabilites BEBE (764,182) (623,197)  (1,191,244) (893,986) (518,223)

Non-controlling interests  FEFR & M5 (5,207) (4,416) (3,237) (3,438) (1,676)
Equity attributable to AR FE(S

shareholders of the HEw
Company 1,275,311 1,514,643 2,006,935 1,927,077 2,130,756
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHREE

GENERAL OVERVIEW

For the very challenging fiscal year ended 31st March 2012 (the
“year”), the Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$1,780
million, representing a decline of 17.9% when compared to
approximately HK$2,168 million achieved during the fiscal year
ended 31st March 2011 (“last year”) (excluding the contribution
from TK Chemical Corporation (“TKC”) which we exited in July
2010).

The consolidated net loss of the Group was approximately HK$241
million, compared with the consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$7.7 million earned in the last year (excluding the profit

contribution from TKC).

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS

Hi-tech Distribution and Services Division: The division’s revenue
was approximately HK$892 million and net profit was approximately
HK$21 million for the year, representing a decrease of 43.0% and
46.4% respectively compared to last year. The overall customer
demand for SMT equipment declined across the sector due to the
uncertain outlook in the industry; however, the sales of Fuji SMT
equipment helped us to retain our market share position in the

sector.

American Tec signed new distribution and service agreements with
leading SMT and software suppliers during the year to complement
our major partnership with Fuji to offer a more comprehensive and

competitive SMT solution.

Fishmeal, Fish Oil and Aquatic Products Division: The Group
shared 40% of Coland’s financial results. The division’s revenue
was approximately HK$744 million with a net loss of approximately
HK$29 million for the year, as compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$465 million with a net profit of approximately
HK$27 million earned in last year. The loss is mainly due to the
volatility of the global commodity price and adverse weather in
China that negatively affected both pricing and demand of brown
fishmeal; however, the gross profit margin of white fishmeal and fish

oil remained stable.

Construction of a new concentrated fish oil factory in Fuzhou of
China is near completion and is expected to start production in the

new fiscal year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHREE

Branded Food Division: The Group’s Burger King restaurants
continued to narrow its loss before impairments/write-down of assets
and provisions for lease obligations with an improved gross profit
margin. Revenue generated during the year was approximately
HK$143 million. The operating loss at the restaurant level was

approximately HK$15 million, down 23.8% from last year.

Sales and ticket count had increased by approximately 3.9% and
12.5% respectively year-on-year, which are attributable to the
continued benefits from promotions. Our Burger King quick service
restaurants have recently received Hong Kong’s “U Favorite Food

Award 2012” for its fourth consecutive year.

BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

There were several organisational changes during the year before
| became Executive Chairman on 1st April 2012. After many
years of dedicated service on the Board, Mr. John Saliling and
Mr. Andrew Yao retired in September 2011 while Mr. Géran Malm
has decided not to stand for re-election at the upcoming annual
general meeting. We thank these gentlemen for their service to the

Company.

As we enter the new fiscal year, Mr. James Tsiolis has been
appointed the Board’s Deputy Chairman. Additionally, we will be
recruiting an independent non-executive director to fill the vacancy

required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Internally, our senior executive Ms. Grace Luk has been promoted
to Chief Operating Officer cum Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
With the new Board and support from the operating teams, we
expect the Group to achieve new milestones and further advance in

its markets.

A NEW WAY FORWARD

Our portfolio companies are leaders in their respective markets and
our focus in the new fiscal year is on execution in order to return the

Group to profitability.

Moreover, management is reviewing and updating our long-term
strategy to provide better clarity on our direction and business
model while striving to create value for our shareholders, customers,

employees, and business partners.

BBERDE : A%LE 2 Burger KingEREEF
KHRE - ENREERE RS RE
BEA 2 BREURERE - AFEELEZIRA
H/1.431E8TT - BEZEEERLR1,5008
BT M EFET#23.8% ©

HEERBEESRFEDRIEMA3.9% £ 12.5% -

THREEZDRRFAME - AEE 2

Burger KingRE R EERITLER B R
BRE2012] - WIOE EH % 5 -
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# o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHREE

For American Tec, we plan to generate revenue growth from new
products and services. With regards to Coland, we anticipate
the demand and pricing for fishmeal to rebound and we plan on
improving asset utilisation to achieve profitability. Working in close
partnership with BK AsiaPac Pte. Ltd., the franchisor of Burger King,
we will critically review the performance of each restaurant while
launching cost effective promotional programs to attract customers

for higher ticket counts and increased revenue.

Going forward, the Group seeks to continue to grow our business,
supported by a sound inventory management system for increased
efficiencies and cost reduction to help minimise business risk.
We will carefully evaluate and review options as to how we may
effectively manage, deploy and apply available cash resources,
including considering appropriate treasury activities given the low
interest rate environment, to meet operational needs and for the

benefit of our shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

We believe updating our long-term strategy, setting operating goals,
motivating our staff and sharing success with business partners will
be important ingredients for the Group’s success, particularly during

this critical transition period.

| wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our stakeholders for their trust and support in the past. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to offer our utmost appreciation to our

shareholders for their confidence in our Company.

Yu Wang Tak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWRE DN

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The weak and uncertain global economy created a very challenging
environment which negatively impacted on fishmeal prices and
the demand for our surface mount technology (“SMT”) equipment
during the fiscal year ended 31st March 2012 (the “year”). Our
Group recorded a consolidated net loss attributable to shareholders
of the Company of approximately HK$241,061,000 on revenue
from continuing operations of approximately HK$1,779,646,000 for
the year, compared to a consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$7,692,000 on revenue from continuing operations of
approximately HK$2,168,056,000 during the fiscal year ended 31st
March 2011 (“last year”) (excluding contribution from TK Chemical
Corporation which we exited in July 2010).

Below is a summary of the financial and business highlights of each
major business division. The profit/loss figures, disclosed below, do
not include any intra-group charges, as they are eliminated upon
consolidation.

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

Our hi-tech distribution and services division conducted business
through our wholly-owned subsidiary, American Tec Company
Limited (“American Tec”). American Tec is a leader in Asia in the
distribution, sales and service of SMT equipment, with a history
of more than 20 years serving its customers in the hi-tech sector.
Our team of more than 230 engineers and customer care staff
are located in more than 25 cities in China, Vietnam and India.
Customers include most of the major telecom and electronic
equipment manufacturers in the world. We are especially well
positioned with the growing base of Chinese manufacturers. Our
suppliers include leading equipment and solutions manufacturers
from Asia, the United States and Europe. With its leading market
position, American Tec signed new distribution and service
agreements with leading SMT and software suppliers during
the year to complement our major partnership with Fuji Machine
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. to offer a comprehensive and competitive
SMT solution.

During the year, this division recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$21,246,000 on revenue of approximately HK$892,404,000,
representing a decrease of about 46.4% and 43.0% respectively
from last year. This was mainly due to the decline of the overall
customer demand for SMT equipment across the sector due to the
uncertain economic environment in the year, as compared with
a historically exceptional surge in demand for SMT equipment
experienced during the rebound from the global economic recession
last year.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REEIZRERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERENWR D

FISHMEAL, FISH OIL AND AQUATIC PRODUCTS
DIVISION

Our fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products division conducted
business through our 40% jointly-controlled company, Coland
Group Limited (“Coland”). Coland continues to focus on serving
the growing need for its products in the aquatic and pig farms and
consumer sector in the Chinese, American and European markets.
Today, it is one of the leading providers and processors of fishmeal,
aquatic feed and fish oil in Asia. With its existing fish oil refinery and
storage facilities, Coland is a leader in product quality and has one
of the largest fish oil storage and processing capabilities in Asia

today.

During the year, the demand for fishmeal and fish oil by customers
in the aquaculture industry in China was affected by heavy rain
and flooding in Southern and Eastern China in the summer of 2011,
which impacted the performance of the aquatic breeding farms.
There was a significant drop in the market price of brown fishmeal
after the first quarter which was caused by increased global supply
and volatility of global commodity prices. As a result, our 40% share
in Coland resulted in a net loss of approximately HK$29,493,000
on revenue of approximately HK$744,236,000, compared to last
year’s net profit of approximately HK$26,723,000 on revenue of
approximately HK$465,187,000.

BRANDED FOOD DIVISION

During the year, management focused on mass marketing, new
product introductions and cost control measures. As a result, sales
and ticket count had increased by approximately 3.9% and 12.5%
respectively year-on-year. Operating loss before income tax at
restaurant level (excluding assets impairment loss and a provision
related to restaurant leases) was further reduced by approximately

23.8% year-on-year.

B RUERKEERD B

AEBZ AW SUHRKEEMD BEBANE
BEA 40% 2 KRZEH AR SEEEBR QA
(IBREDEEXRYK - SREEFINDE - XH
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T Ft  REBEBME®EEZ 40% AL
744,236,000 % T 8% 15 /& 18 7 58 £9 29,493,000
BT M EFERIB WAL 465,187,000 % sk
5% A/ F 5847 26,723,000 7T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWRE DN

BRANDED FOOD DIVISION (continued)

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement to terminate
the exclusivity right to develop franchisee business in Hong Kong
and Macau, in light of the continuing operating losses of the
restaurant operating under the franchise agreements since their
openings. In addition, in view of such continuing losses, the Group
conducted impairment assessment of deferred tax asset, property,
plant and equipment and franchise fees of these restaurants
to reflect the Group’s latest business strategy and recognised
impairments/write-down of assets and provisions for lease
obligations totaling approximately HK$101,948,000. As a result, the
division recorded a net loss of approximately HK$141,334,000 on
revenue of approximately HK$143,006,000 for the year, compared
to net loss of approximately HK$29,162,000 on revenue of
HK$137,622,000 in last year. Excluding other one-off expenses and
forementioned impairments/write-down of assets and provisions for
lease obligations, the division’s net loss is about HK$23,834,000 for
the year, down 18.3% from the loss of about HK$29,162,000 in last
year.

OUTLOOK

Overall Summary

We expect the volatility in the global economy to continue in 2012.
This will continue to offer various challenges to our businesses in
the coming quarters, ranging from cautious customer demand to
pressure on margins. Our companies are leaders in their respective
markets and our focus will be to manage cash, costs and risks
and, to build our strength during these times by working with our
management teams to improve capability and efficiency.

Hi-tech Distribution and Services Division

In the near term, we expect that our customers will continue to be
more cautious in their capital investment plan, which may impact
on our revenue and margins. In addition, they are demanding more
efficient equipment and services that can help their businesses
during this economic downturn. With this outlook, we are focusing
on the following areas to strengthen our leading position in the
industry: accelerate the growth of revenue streams from services/
solutions, new products and complementary segments and enhance
our sales and servicing teams. With this approach, we will work to
minimise the impact from the economic downturn and strengthen
our position for the recovery. At the same time, we will also continue
to monitor our working capital, gross profit margin, operating costs
and foreign exchange risk closely with a view to protect our cash
flow and profitability.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REEIZRERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERENWR D

OUTLOOK (continued)
Fishmeal, Fish Oil and Aquatic Products Division

In the near term, we foresee rebounding in demand and pricing
for our brown fishmeal due to warmer weather and limited global
supply. We expect that the demand for fish oil and aquatic
feeds products will increase with a more stable market price.
We will continue to take a well-balanced and cautious approach
in monitoring our operation and growing our processed product

businesses.
Branded Food Division

In this economic climate, the quick service restaurant business
is expected to have increased demand as people look for lower
cost alternatives for dining out. Burger King continues to provide
premium products in the market place with a great brand. Working
in close partnership with BK AsiaPac, Pte. Ltd., the franchisor
of Burger King, we will critically review the performance of each
restaurant while developing cost effective promotional programs to

attract customers for sales growth.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31st March 2012, the Group had bank and cash balances
of approximately HK$994,923,000 (2011: HK$1,079,965,000),
of which approximately HK$85,509,000 (2011: HK$96,416,000)
was pledged to secure trade financing facilities of approximately
HK$1,204,623,000 (2011: HK$857,899,000) granted by banks to its
group companies for trust receipts loans, mortgage loans and bank
borrowings. These banking facilities were also secured by (a) bank
deposits, (b) corporate guarantees provided by the Company, (c)
the Group’s inventories held under trust receipts loan arrangement,
(d) buildings, (e) investment properties, (f) leasehold land and land
use rights payments, (g) the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, (h) personal guarantees provided by certain
directors of jointly-controlled entity, (i) property and bank deposits
of certain directors of jointly-controlled entity, (j) discounted bills
receivable with recourse, and (k) corporate guarantees provided by

independent third parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWRE DN

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS (continued)

As at 31st March 2012, the Group had borrowings of approximately
HK$338,710,000 (2011: HK$246,203,000).

(borrowings divided by equity attributable to shareholders of

The gearing ratio

the Company) of the Group was 0.27 as at 31st March 2012, as
compared to 0.16 as at 31st March 2011.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF INVESTMENTS
AND SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31st March 2012, the Group had no significant investments.
There were no material acquisitions or disposals of investments and

subsidiaries during the year.

FOREIGN CURENCY EXPOSURE

The business of the Group was primarily transacted in HK$, USS,
Yen and Renminbi. The Group’s cash and bank deposits, including
pledged bank deposits, were mainly denominated in HK$. The
foreign currency exposure of the Group is mainly driven by its
business divisions. The Group attempts to minimise its foreign
currency exposure through (i) matching its payables for purchases
against its receivables on sales and (ii) maintain sufficient foreign
currency cash balances to settle the foreign currency payables. We
will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate between US$ and
Yen and will make necessary hedging arrangements to minimise its
foreign currency exposure arising from foreign currency fluctuation

in the future.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2012, the Company had provided guarantees
of approximately HK$766,388,000 (2011: HK$486,700,000) with
respect to banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries and

jointly-controlled entity.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REEIZRERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERENWR D

NET ASSET VALUE

Consolidated net asset value attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company per ordinary share was approximately HK$0.0947 as
at 31st March 2012 which reflected a decrease of HK$0.0167 from
the corresponding figure as at 31st March 2011 of approximately
HK$0.1114.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March 2012, the Group employed 1,072 (2011: 1,017)
staff. Salaries and annual bonuses are determined according to
positions and performance of the employees. Remuneration policies
are reviewed annually by the management and remuneration
packages are structured to take into account the comparable
level of the market. The Group provides on-the-job training and
training subsidies to its employees in addition to pension schemes
and medical insurance. Total staff costs including contribution to
retirement benefit schemes incurred during the year from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$120,754,000 (2011:
HK$107,128,000).

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

There was no material change in capital commitments since
31st March 2012.

EEFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWRE DN

COMMITMENTS (continued)

Operating lease commitments

As at 31st March 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

EiEE)
REBERE

RZE——FZA=+—H AEEREZET
AIHHEEETHE  RARBERE ZEHE B

follows: R IERE EIER -
As at 31st March
R=B=+—H

2011
—E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year 1FELAR 32,427 29,468
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2FEESF(REHEMT) 40,216 20,411
After five years ELFLAE 6,262 124
78,905 50,003

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF
THE GEM LISTING RULES

The following is a condensed consolidated statement of financial

position as at 31st March 2012 of Coland Group Limited, a jointly

RIER EHRAUF17.24 R 2 HEKE

RIFEE R PTAIZE IR EMARBIE A7 24 FRE - A
TREREEFRAR(AEEESR 40% R A%

controlled entity, of which the Group has an equity interest of 40%, HZHEEGFEE IR -_E——F=A=1+—8H
as required therein under rule 17.24 of the GEM Listing Rules: TSRS E
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 360,219
Inventories T8 707,771
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEHR 63,402
Other current assets Htbmen g E 362,582
Bank borrowings BITEE (692,098)
Other current liabilities HEtnsiasE (371,134)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (6,523)
Net assets BEEE 424,219

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REEIZRERAF



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yu Wang Tak, Chairman

Mr. Yu Wang Tak, aged 56, joined the Company as Independent
Non-executive Director in November 2007 and was the Company’s
Deputy Chairman since November 2010 up to March 2012. Mr. Yu
was re-designated as the Chairman and Executive Director in April
2012. Mr. Yu had worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc. (“Sun”) for
22 years, with the last executive position as the President of Sun
in the Greater China region. He had worked in various leadership
positions of Sun, including the Head of Finance for Worldwide Field
Operations. He had received for his distinct contributions to Sun
numerous recognitions including Innovator of the Year, Country
Manager of the Year, Sales VP of the Year and Sun’s Worldwide
Leadership Award. He is a graduate of the Sun Leadership
Institute. Prior to joining Sun in 1985, Mr. Yu had held a variety
of management positions for various companies, such as Apple
Computer and Ford Motor Company. For six years from 2000, he
had served as a Board Member for the Hong Kong Applied Science
& Technology Research Institute Company Limited. He is a Board
Member and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Nano and
Advanced Materials Institute Limited. He was a certified internal
auditor in USA and received his Bachelor of Science and Master of
Business Administration degrees from the University of California,
Berkeley. He is a member of the remuneration committee and

nomination committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEEH

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

James Tsiolis, Deputy Chairman

Mr. James Tsiolis, aged 44, joined the Company in December 2010
and was appointed Deputy Chairman of the Company in April 2012.
Mr. Tsiolis has 19 years of experience in equity funds and capital
markets. He is the Chief Executive Officer and a founder of Strategic
Capital Management Ltd since 2000. Previously, Mr. Tsiolis served
as Head of Research, ipac Securities since 1997. He also worked
as a Senior Investment Analyst of ASSIRT Investment & Technology
and a Quantitative Analyst of James Capel Australia Ltd. Mr.
Tsiolis serves as a chairman of Optimal Choice Pty Ltd (trading
as Investment Products). He is also a Governor of Australian
Archaeological Institute at Athens and a member of Australian
Institute of Management, The Association of Superannuation Funds
of Australia Limited and Financial Planning Association of Australia
Limited. Mr. Tsiolis is the Chairman of SCM Equities Pty Limited. He
is also a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University, Sydney and a Graduate Certificate Quantitative Finance
from University of Technology, Sydney. He is a member of the audit
committee of the Company.

Jason Matthew Brown

Mr. Jason Matthew Brown, aged 44, joined the Company in
September 2010. Mr.
Situations Group of Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.
Sachs”).

Group (“ASSG”). Mr. Brown is a member of the Asia Management

Brown is the head of the Global Special
(“Goldman
Previously, he was head of the Asia Special Situations

Committee, the Asia Securities Division Operating Committee and
the Asia Risk Committee. Mr. Brown joined Goldman Sachs in
1999 as an executive director in the Specialised Credit Trading
Group and moved to the ASSG in 2000. He was named managing
director of Goldman Sachs in 2004 and partner in 2006. Prior to
joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Brown worked as an emerging markets
credit analyst and distressed debt investor for Bear Stearns from
1994 to 1999, working in New York, London and Hong Kong. Mr.
Brown earned a Master of Public Administration degree at Princeton
University and a Bachelor of Arts degree (First Class) in History and
Economics from Oxford University.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEEH

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Goran Sture Malm

Mr. Géran Sture Malm, aged 65, joined the Company in August 2005
as the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company and was
re-designated as Non-executive Director in April 2012. Mr. Malm is
the chairman of Boathouse Limited, an investment company, and
Children’s Medical Foundation, Hong Kong, a charity originated in
the United States. He also presently serves as a director of various
companies in China, Hong Kong, Japan, Singapore, lItaly and
Sweden, and was an independent director of Samsung Electronic
Co. Ltd in Seoul, Korea. Prior to joining Boathouse Limited in
2000, Mr. Malm was the president of Dell Asia Pacific, senior vice
president of Dell Computer Corporation, senior vice president of
General Electric (GE) Company, president of General Electric Asia
Pacific, president and chief executive officer of GE Medical Systems
Asia Ltd. and vice president of General Electric (GE) Company.
Mr. Malm holds a Bachelor degree in Economics and Business
Administration from the Gothenburg School of Business, Economics
and Law in Sweden. For 2005-2006, Mr. Malm was assigned as
visiting professor in Applied Management at the same Business

School.
Takeshi Kadota

Mr. Takeshi Kadota, aged 65, joined the Company in September
2007. Mr. Kadota has been engaged for more than 20 years
in various capital market activities, including private equity
investments. Prior to his retirement from Mitsubishi Corporation,
Mr. Kadota acted as a senior vice president and division chief
operating officer of its financial services division which included
private equity, real estate, M&A and venture capital. Mr. Kadota
also served as president and chief executive officer of Mitsubishi
Corporation Capital Ltd. Prior to this post, he served as a managing
director of Mitsubishi Corporation Finance PLC, a Euro-based
financial subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation. Mr. Kadota was a
visiting professor and lecturer in the field of business administration
in the Interdisciplinary Graduate School of Science and Engineering,
Tokyo Institute of Technology. He received his Bachelor degree in
Laws from University of Tokyo and a Master degree in Business

Administration from Stanford Graduate School of Business.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEEH

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Enoch Yi-Nong Wu, Alternate Director

Mr. Enoch Yi-Nong Wu, aged 31, was appointed as Alternate
Director to Mr. Jason Matthew Brown in December 2011. Mr. Wu is
an executive director of Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.. Mr. Wu has
9 years of experience in the financial services industry, including
corporate finance advisory and fund management. Mr. Wu earned

his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Yale University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Kenny Tam King Ching

Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching, aged 63, joined the Company in
September 2004. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving
as a member of the Small and Medium Practitioners Leadership
Panel and Practice Review Committee in the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a past president of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam serves as
an independent non-executive director of six other companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, CCT Telecom
Holdings Limited, Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited, Shougang
Concord Grand (Group) Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited, Van
Shung Chong Holdings Limited and West China Cement Limited.
Mr. Tam is the Chairman of the audit committee and remuneration
committee, and a member of the nomination committee of the

Company.
Philip Ma King Huen

Mr. Philip Ma King Huen, aged 55, joined the Company in March
2000. Mr. Ma is the deputy chairman and chief executive officer
of The Sincere Company, Limited, a listed company on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma was the chairman of the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association from 1996 to 2000 and is
very active in the community service. He holds a Master degree in
Business Administration from McMaster University in Canada. Mr.
Ma is the Chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the

audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEEH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Grace Luk Pui Yin, Chief Operating Officer cum
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Grace Luk Pui Yin, aged 47, joined the Company in August
2005. Ms. Luk was the director and financial controller of Kleinwort
Benson China Management Limited, the investment manager of
the London-listed China Investment & Development Fund. This
Fund invested in 12 joint ventures with substantial manufacturing
operations in China and completed divestment of its portfolio
before 2003. She was also the vice president of Dresdner Kleinwort
Capital, the private equity arm of Dresdner Bank. She has over
10 years of private equity experience in the Greater China region.
Prior to Kleinwort Benson, Ms. Luk was the department head of the
category financial management department at Colgate-Palmolive
(H.K.) Limited and was an auditor at Arthur Andersen & Co in Hong
Kong. She received her Bachelor degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow of the
UK Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate of
both the UK Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTOR(S) PURSUANT TO RULE 17.50A(1) OF
THE GEM LISTING RULES

Pursuant to rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, set out below
is the change in details of a Director of the Company since the date
of the 2011/12 Interim Report of the Company:

Mr. Philip Ma King Huen has been re-designated from the group
managing director to the deputy chairman and chief executive
officer of The Sincere Company, Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 26th March 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXER®|E

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company endeavours in maintaining high standards of
corporate governance in the interests of shareholders, and follows
the principles set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Except for the deviation described below, no Director of
the Company is aware of any information which would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not, or was not at any time throughout
the year ended 31st March 2012, acting in compliance with the
Code.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms. However, Mr. Jason Matthew
Brown and Mr. James Tsiolis, Non-executive Directors elected by
the shareholders at the general meetings of the Company have not
been appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in accordance

with the Bye-laws of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors of the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the year ended 31st
March 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles and responsibilities

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic
development of the Group with the goal of maximising long-term
shareholder value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.
Given the diversity and volume of the Company’s business,
responsibility for execution and daily operations is delegated to

management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities (continued)

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three sub-committees: audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. All of these committees have
terms of reference which accord with the principles set out in the
Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

Composition

As at 31st March 2012, the Board comprised of seven Directors:
an Executive Director, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors that are one-third of the
Board. Following the re-designation of Mr. Géran Sture Malm and
Mr. Yu Wang Tak since 1st April 2012 and as at the date of the
report, the Board comprised of seven Directors: an Executive
Director, four Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-
executive Directors. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section of “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 16 to 20.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. All the
Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs.

During the year, the Executive Directors are responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s operations. These Directors
conduct regular meetings with the senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries, at which operational issue and

financial performance are evaluated.

The Non-executive Directors provide the Company with a wide
range of expertise and experience. They bring independent
judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance,
risk and management process through their contribution at Board
and committee meetings.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independence

During the year ended 31st March 2012, the Company has three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate
financial management expertise, in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. Following the re-designation of Mr. Yu Wang Tak from an
Independent Non-executive Director to an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1st April 2012, the Company since then
has only two Independent Non-executive Directors. The Company
will be recruiting an Independent Non-executive Director to fill the
vacancy required by the GEM Listing Rules. Each Independent Non-
executive Director has given the Company an annual confirmation
of his independence, and the Company considers these Directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Mr. Philip Ma King Huen will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. Mr. Ma
has served on the Board for more than 12 years since March 2000.
Being a long-serving Director, Mr. Ma has developed an in-depth
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and has
expressed objective views and given independent guidance to the
Company over the years. The Board is satisfied that Mr. Ma will
continue to have the required character and experience to fulfill the
role of an Independent Non-executive Director.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times every year to determine
overall strategic direction and objectives and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results, budgets and other significant matters.
At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings are given to all
Directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from formal meetings,
matters requiring board approval are arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions. Senior management from time
to time provides to the Directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of

matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.
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TRERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

Thirteen full Board meetings were held during the year with an

average attendance rate of 95%. The attendance of each Director at

ERRBREERER

FR-HBITT=ZRE

BEFEEH - FOLR
EBS%  RENGEFHEEFERHLIE

Board meetings during the year is set out below: BT -
*Meetings Attended/
Eligible to Attend
“HEERRE
Board Members EEEgRE BERUERY
Executive Directors HITES
Goran Sture Malm (Re-designated as Non-executive Director Goran Sture Malm (R =F——4F 12/13
and stepped down as Chairman on 1st April 2012) PIA—HFERIFENTEE - &
RIFFE)
John Saliling (Retired on 15th September 2011) John Saliling (R =F——4F 717
A+ EHRE)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Andrew Yao Cho Fai (Retired on 15th September 2011) kEB(R=_F——FNA+HA 6/7
RIF)
James Tsiolis (Appointed as Deputy Chairman on James Tsiolis (R =F——F/1 7 13/13
1st April 2012) —HEZEREZE)
Jason Matthew Brown (Appointed Enoch Yi-Nong Wu as Jason Matthew Brown (R =& ——4F 12/13
Alternate Director on 16th December 2011) TZAT A NAZEREER
EFEE)
Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota 13/13
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Yu Wang Tak (Re-designated as Executive Director and REE(R -E——FMA—HEEA 13/13
appointed as Chairman on 1st April 2012) HITEE  WEZHTRBLTE)
Kenny Tam King Ching B IE 12/13
Philip Ma King Huen BRE 13/13

*

Excluding the attendance by Alternate Director

. TEEEFEEZLERE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31st March 2012, Mr. Goéran Sture Malm
served as the Chairman and Mr. John Saliling served as the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, with segregated roles and

division of responsibility.

From 1st April 2012, Mr. Yu Wang Tak takes up the role as the
Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director of the Company.
Under the leadership of Mr. Yu in his Executive Director role,
the Board’s decisions are implemented with the involvement and
support of the Chief Operating Officer cum Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Grace Luk Pui Yin and also the chief executive officer(s) and

general manager(s) of the Company’s operating companies.

The Board believes that the balance of authority and division of
responsibility are adequately ensured by the operations of the
Board and management which comprises experienced and high

calibre individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the Non-executive Directors is for a
period of three years unless terminated by either party with one
month’s written notice, except for Mr. Jason Matthew Brown and
Mr. James Tsiolis who were not appointed for a specific term but
elected by the shareholders at general meetings. All the Non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings in accordance with the

provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises a majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Philip Ma King Huen.
The terms of reference of the nomination committee are aligned
with the provisions set out in the Code. The nomination committee
is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition and
the management of board succession with reference to certain
guidelines including appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills,

and time commitments of members.

During the year, the committee has reviewed the board composition,
the appointment of directors and made recommendation to the
Board. A meeting was held during the year ended 31st March 2012.

Attendance of the members is set out below:

REZEE

REZESGHABIBIUIFNTESTER TR
RERERE - REZEGZREHERTAM
HEXHET - - RELZEAEEREES
A EREERRERERRREARTEANE
FERHERE  FHEEDN2ESEEENRR
TRER - BARST B EATRERKER
BARREEE THEIMEL -

FR ZEERIEFTEZEANR  ZEEFLR
EreRftEz HE-_T——F=A=+—H
LLFE - ARREITT —RIRBRZEEEH &
KEHFEEREREAMT

Meetings Attended/
Eliglible to Attend

Note HESEIE
Nomination Committee Members REZEEHRE Hiat AERHERE
Philip Ma King Huen (Committee Chairman) BRE(ZEEFE) 1/1
Goran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm (i) i7al

Kenny Tam King Ching & E
Yu Wang Tak RAE
Note:

(i) Ceased as committee member on 1st April 2012

11
11

EE
() R-B-—FmA-BHEZALREEY
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises a majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Kenny Tam King
Ching as at the date of this report. The terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are aligned with the provisions set out in
the Code. The remuneration committee has delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management and make recommendation to the Board
of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors. A meeting
was held for the year ended 31st March 2012. Attendance of the

members is set out below:

FMEES

HNEEGRABOBULIERTERANK - B
WERH  TE/BHRIELE -FHEEG 2B
RBEETAASGRT - - FHEZ Bk
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TE-CHF-A=+—HLFE 8177 —RHE
MEZEgez - SREHFERERBEANT

Meetings Attended/
Eligible to attend

Notes HESERE
Remuneration Committee Members FMESERE iirEa CERBERE
Kenny Tam King Ching (Committee Chairman) BRE(ZESEE) (i) 1/1
Philip Ma King Huen B[E2E 1/1
Yu Wang Tak RAE (ii) 1/1
John Saliling John Saliling (iii) 11
Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota (iv) 1/
Notes: B
(i) Appointed as committee chairman on 1st April 2012 (i) RZE——FHNA—RAEZETAZECERE
(i)  Ceased as committee chairman on 1st April 2012, but remained as (i) RZE——ZFNA—BHIZESIREEY AN

member RKE

(i)  Ceased as committee member on 15th September 2011 iy MZE——FNATHEBIZESKERS
(iv)  Ceased as committee member on 1st April 2012 (iv) RZT——FNA—BABHEZESRERS

For the year ended 31st March 2012, total Directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$4,413,000 (2011: HK$6,099,000).

Remuneration of the Executive Directors is prudently designed
to attract, motivate and retain them to formulate strategies and to
oversee operational matters of the Group and to reward them for
enhancing value to the shareholders. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors for the year are set out in note 8 to the accompanying

financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference that set out the authorities and duties of the committee
adopted by the Board. The committee comprises of Non-executive
Directors with majority being Independent Non-executive Directors,
and is chaired by Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching who has appropriate

professional qualifications and experience in financial matters.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are aligned with the
provisions set out in the Code. The committee’s principal duties are
to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and
financial controls of the Group, oversee the performance of internal
control systems and financial reporting process, monitor the integrity
of the financial statements and compliance with statutory and listing
requirements and to oversee independence and qualifications of the

external auditors.

The audit committee meets the external auditors at least four times
a year to discuss any area of concern during the audits or reviews.
The audit committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditors, executive Directors and senior management

are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the audit committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was content
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group are in
accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. Four
meetings were held during the year and the attendance at meetings

is set out below:
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Meetings Attended/
Eligible to attend

Note HEEERE
Audit Committee Members EREEENE Mat BERHEERE
Kenny Tam King Ching (Committee Chairman) BHRIE(ZEEEFE) 4/4
Philip Ma King Huen BRE 4/4
Yu Wang Tak RAE (i) 4/4
Note: Hia

(i) Ceased as a committee member after his re-designation as Executive
Director on 1st April 2012 and Mr. James Tsiolis was appointed as a

committee member on the same date.

(i) R-ZT——FNA—BATARTESYHIEZE
&k 8BTS - M James TsiolisRAIAEZEEAEZE

KA °
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AUDITORS’ REMUNRATION

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditors on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditors for the audit amounted to approximately
HK$2,668,000 (2011: HK$2,624,000) and fee for non-audit
related activities amounted to approximately HK$964,000 (2011:
HK$662,000).

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interest. The internal control system is designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems. The
system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The system aims to support

the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The system comprises a well-defined organisational structure
with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority to ensure
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
Board conducts regularly reviews of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group through reviews performed by audit
committee, executive management, internal audit department and

external auditors.

During the year, the internal audit department conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
of the Company and its operating subsidiaries covering all
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance
and risk management, and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, their training programs and budget. The
audit committee was well informed of the audit findings, emerging

trends and successful practices in internal auditing.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the effectiveness of
the system of the internal control through the following processes
and subsequently reported the review results to the Board:

. discussions with the executive management on areas of risk
identified

. review of risks reported by the internal audit department

o review of the external audit plans

o review of issues reported by external auditors

. review of the reports from the internal audit department, the

executive management to ensure appropriate controls are in

place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

Based on the result of the review for the year ended 31st March
2012, the Board considered that the internal control system and
procedures of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programs and budget, are
adequate and effective and have complied with the provisions of
the Code during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Company proactively promotes investor relations.
Communication with shareholders is always given high priority.
Extensive information about the Group’s activities is provided in the
annual report, interim report and quarterly report. The Company’s
website provides regularly updated information to shareholders.
Enquiries on matters relating to the business of the Group are
welcomed, and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual
general meetings to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals. It provides an opportunity for direct communications between
the Board and its shareholders. Shareholders have statutory rights
to call for special general meetings by serving appropriate written
requests to the Company. The chairman of the meeting explains the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any
questions from shareholders. The poll results are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The chairmen of the Board and the audit committee and external
auditors attended the annual general meeting of the Company held

on 15th September 2011 to answer questions from shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which gives a true
and fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standard are selected and applied

consistently.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 43 and 44 of this annual

report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and at attracting
investment. The management will devote considerate effort to
strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate governance
of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHRES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) have the pleasure of presenting
their annual report together with the audited financial statements
of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”), its
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities (together the “Group”) for
the year ended 31st March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in (i) hi-tech distribution and services:
trading of surface mount technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and provision of related installation,
training, repair and maintenance services for SMT assembly
equipment; and (ii) branded food: developing and operating
Burger King restaurants in Hong Kong and Macau. lts jointly-
controlled entity is principally engaged in fishmeal, fish oil and
aquatic products: refining and sale of fish oil, processing and sale
of fishmeal, manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed products,

aquaculture and processing and sale of aquatic products.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment results by
operating segment for the year ended 31st March 2012 is set out in

note 5 to the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are

shown in note 27 to the accompanying financial statements

RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st March 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 46 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31st March 2012. For the year ended 31st March 2011,
special dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share was paid by the

Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the accompanying financial

statements.

As at 31st March 2012, the reserves available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$1,136,190,000 (2011: HK$1,206,281,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is

set out on page 4 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entities are set out in notes 19 and 20 to the accompanying financial

statements, respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 15 and 16 to the accompanying financial statements,

respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st March 2012 are set out in

note 29 to the accompanying financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year are:

Yu Wang Tak

James Tsiolis

Jason Matthew Brown
(Enoch Yi-Nong Wu as Alternate Director since
16th December 2011)

Goran Sture Malm

Takeshi Kadota

Kenny Tam King Ching

Philip Ma King Huen

John Saliling (retired on 15th September 2011)

Andrew Yao Cho Fai (retired on 15th September 2011)
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James Tsiolis

Jason Matthew Brown
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Goran Sture Malm

Takeshi Kadota
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs.
Kenny Tam King Ching and Philip Ma King Huen shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
be eligible for re-election while Mr. Géran Sture Malm has decided
to retire and not to offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

Mr. Philip Ma King Huen has served on the Board for more than 12
years since March 2000. Being a long-serving Director, Mr. Ma has
developed an in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, and has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the years. The Board
is satisfied that Mr. Ma will continue to have the required character
and experience to fulfill the role of an independent non-executive

director.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out

on pages 16 to 20 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REEIZRERAF

-4 )

BEBEARBZABMANESTH  BRELEER
FEBEEERREERRAEFAG LhESER
BRE&ERERER - M Goran Sture Malm %t
FERERE - AR EERRBERG LB
BEE -

SREALE _TETF-_ARESCHEESE
RBE125F - EREBMBZEER - FELE
HARR2EEREBEBRATE  BRZF
RERARRHRHEBERRBUIES - EF S
EMB AL BEERBEITEL N TES B
BB KA -

EEREREEABZER

EENEAEEABZEEENAFHRE16E
ZEHE20H -

EERBEN

BREERRBFAG LERSE EFHRE
BB L ER AR ARER —FRR I H
AXNHECEERERIN ZRBEEH

EEMEFFHNBEN 2 S HRKRMES -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHRES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2012, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates had the following interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the securities transactions by Directors:

EERRETRAEBRKG - HEBERA
REEREZESERAR

RZZE—ZF=A=+—0 EFKARAER
THABURESEEZBBEATRARRIRE
B EE(TRREARPEKRAI(EZSRAE
GBI D EXVER) Z B - ABRERR 1D I B 35
A TIIEAREEF RS EHIE 352 6 F A
FEZELMASREAIZER EMHRRIZE546
KEES7THRERETETESFRGZMETA
MERRNR Rz ERmRAR

Long positions in the shares of the Company RAERXBRGZHFE

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholdings Nofe
EEnE 513 FREERHEE BFRZBHNEIL F7
Mr. Goéran Sture Malm (Mr. Malm) Interest of controlled corporation 94,127,499 0.70% 1
Goran Sture Malm 564 (Malm %t 4 ) SRS AR 2
Note: /?ﬁﬁ:f -
1. Mr. Malm was beneficially interested in these shares through his i Malm Je 435 @ E % ) 2 A Bl Windswept Inc. Bz

controlling company, Windswept Inc.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2012, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the securities of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by

Directors.

Save for the above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age
had any interests in, or had been granted or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of its associated

corporations during the year.
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INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER

PERSONS

As at 31st March 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
were disclosed above) had interests or short positions in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Ht ALt Z2BBEH KR

RZB-—ZF=A=+—H REFREART&
BITHABMAM  NIAL(ER EXEREED
ZEERARAHZEDITRABRINRARE K
MREER DT - HERIARBESF ARG
1% 336 T IAFE 2 BRMAZERIAR

Long positions in the shares of the Company REAQAB RS ZFR
Substantial shareholders of the Company ERAAEERRK
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity Note shares held shareholdings
=L 37 Mt FREERBE FRZBMEISH
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 1 2,477,650,064 18.40%
ZAEH| A A2
Military Superannuation and Benefits Trustee 2 2,041,884,817 15.16%
Board of Trustees No 1 ZEEA
(“MSB Board")
Other Shareholders of the Company BMALGRE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholdings
=L =27 FREEREE FR2HBOEIHL
C.L Davids Fond og Samling Beneficial owner 1,061,780,105 7.88%
EnEAA
United Overseas Bank Limited Beneficial owner 743,295,019 5.52%

RERITERRA
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INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
PERSONS (continued)

Long positions in the shares of the Company (continued)
Notes:

1. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. was deemed to be interested in these
shares through its indirect subsidiary, Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance.

2. These shares were held by MSB Board as a trustee for an Australian
pension scheme. On 1st July 2011, MSB Board merged with the Board
of Australian Reward Investment Alliance to form Commonwealth
Superannuation Corporation (“CSC”) and MSB Board’s assets vested in
CSC without any conveyance, transfer or assignment.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company the interests of which
were disclosed above) who has an interest or short position in the
securities of the Company that were required to be entered in the
register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at
31st March 2012.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10th June 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). Under
the terms of the 2002 Scheme, the Board may at its discretion offer
share options to any employee, agent, consultant or representative,
including any executive or non-executive Director, of any member
of the Group or any other person who satisfies the selection criteria
as set out in the 2002 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2002
Scheme is to provide incentives to participants to contribute to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain high
caliber employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group. The 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date. As at 31st
March 2012, no share options have been granted by the Company
pursuant to the 2002 Scheme. The 2002 Scheme expired on 10th
June 2012,

Htt AT 2 EBmS XA )

REQTARBZER(E)

et -

1. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. % i@ RiZH B
‘A7) Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance#8ZZMK
K

2. Z LR MSB Board EABMNRASFEI 2 Z&
AAFEE R-ZT——F+A—H  MSB Board
#lthe Board of Australian Reward Investment
Alliance & # & Commonwealth Superannuation

Corporation ([CSCJ) * i MSB Board Z & E{E{a
H5 - ERLEREENTHECSC -
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TEME AR RT 81 ([ 2002 F5HEI]) © B 4% 2002 F &t
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 31st October 2006, the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “Best Creation Scheme”) adopted by Best Creation
Investments Limited (“Best Creation”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, allowing its board of directors to grant options to
subscribe for shares in Best Creation to the selected participants
under such scheme as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Best Creation group. The Best Creation Scheme has a life of ten
years commencing on the adoption date of 31st October 2006. As
at 31st March 2012, no share options have been granted pursuant

to the Best Creation Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significant concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of

the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2012, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March 2012, the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 67% of the Group’s total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 43% of the Group’s total purchases. The aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest suppliers noted above.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company repurchased a total of 117,614,000 ordinary shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange during the year and additional
1,400,000 ordinary shares subsequent to the end of the reporting
period in April 2012. These repurchased shares were substantially
cancelled during the year with the remaining portion cancelled in
April 2012. Details of the shares repurchased during the year are

set out below:

ITREFRHER

BE_T-——F=-A=t—HLEFE FKEH
AEEBFEAEENBERRENCT%  MAE
BEAHEREAKRENBEREAEN4I% - A
SERAARFPHERBEAHEARBLEREET
& 30% °

MEAMES REZHBATHARESAAE
B 5% NABRA Z ERRRN EX R 2 &
SERAHEETHEA Bk -

BA - EHIBEEARQRF 2z LTRSS

FAARARRERZFTAERA £ 117,614,000 &7
NEIEBR - WRBRREAKRENR T ——FImA
B[O E8 5N 1,400,000 R E @A - 5% FHEEIRMD A
HoRFEAETE  SRATIHHR_E——FN
AT - FABERG ZFBHINNT

Number of

shares Price per share
repurchased SRER Aggregate
iR Highest Lowest price paid*
Month of repurchases HBE A/ BHEE B& BiE ERLER*
(HKS) (HK$) (HK$)
(ET) (BT) ()
April 2011 —Z——5%NA 2,000,000 0.072 0.071 143,944
September 2011 —Z2——%NA 4,510,000 0.033 0.030 139,090
October 2011 “E——%+A 11,130,000 0.029 0.028 317,330
November 2011 ZT——%+-R 28,504,000 0.039 0.029 1,010,364
December 2011 —T—%+ZR 40,670,000 0.040 0.034 1,499,226
January 2012 —T-—F-f 7,360,000 0.036 0.035 260,400
February 2012 —E--%_H 12,970,000 0.048 0.044 599,456
March 2012 —ET-—%=H 10,470,000 0.044 0.038 419,746
117,614,000 4,389,556

* Excluding transaction cost * IR B K
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES (continued)

The repurchases were effected by the Directors pursuant to the
mandate from shareholders, with a view to benefits shareholders as
a whole in enhancing the net assets and earnings per share of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31st March 2012 and

up to the date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued ordinary

shares as at the date of this annual report.

INFORMATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Yu Wang Tak.
Mr. Yu is the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company.
Biographical details of Mr. Yu is set out on page 16 of this annual

report.

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Lam Yee Fan. She
has over 15 years of company secretarial experience at listed
companies in Hong Kong. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out on pages 21 to 31 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2012 have
been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

Yu Wang Tak
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14th June 2012
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To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

14 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEERER

Year ended 31st March 2012 BE —ZE——F=A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FELEEK
Revenue A ) 1,779,646 2,168,056
Cost of sales SHERCAR (1,534,037) (1,852,361)
Gross profit EFI 245,609 315,695
Other income and gains, net E A Rz - JFEE 6 9,499 39,356
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (190,966) (199,694)
General and administrative expenses —#& &7 E A (283,244) (135,400)
Operating profit/(loss) R R (B518) (219,102) 19,957
Finance income B S UA 9 15,333 5,568
Finance costs B 7% 2 A 9 (19,602) (10,576)
Profit/(loss) before income tax from SIEACE FE TS 2 RIS BLAT
continuing operations s, (E518) 7 (223,371) 14,949
Income tax expense FriS iz 10 (17,359) (6,832)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BEBICEEBE 2 FRNRH,
continuing operations (&) (240,730) 8,117
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIERKEER
Profit for the year from a discontinued B 4% 1F&& ¥ 2 F R
operation 12 — 14,200
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EBE) (240,730) 22,317
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FE(GER%RF], (E5E) :
— Shareholders of the Company — AR AR 11 (241,061) 21,892
— Non-controlling interests — FEIER RS 331 425
(240,730) 22,317
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable 782 R)E B AE R B &%
to ordinary shareholders B,/ (EiE)
of the Company 14
Basic and diluted EAR NS
— For profit/(loss) for the year — ERNEF(EE)
(HK cents) Gl (1.78) 0.16
— For profit/(loss) for the year — RBECEEBZFA
from continuing operations wm Al (EE)
(HK cents) CENL) (1.78) 0.06

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the prior year are

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEHEWER

Year ended 31st March 2012 B —ZE——F=A=+—HILFE

2011
—E——f
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EE) (240,730) 22,317
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  E 2z, (EiE) :
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHTESREE :
Changes in fair value RREZE 21 (443) 244
Reclassification adjustments & ¥R A
for gains included in the rEBmE WG
consolidated income statement EHEH D AR
as a result of the disposal (700) (676)
Currency translation differences: B g
Reclassification adjustment for P SRR & B B R
exchange differences included Hit AEReBmER 2
in the consolidated income [ 5 =B IEH
statement upon the disposal of B EFAE
a jointly-controlled entity — 50,420
Currency translation differences BINE Z B e
of foreign operations i 7,796 (18,664)
Other comprehensive income for the ~ FREMEEUES -
year, net of income tax of nil BRATETZR S5 6,653 31,324
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRNE2EKE(EE)a5E
for the year (234,077) 53,641
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EiEFERZERE(EE)
for the year attributable to: BE
— Shareholders of the Company — ARRIRRE (234,675) 52,843
— Non-controlling interests — FEIEHI MR 598 798
(234,077) 53,641
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
8 35 AR 0 a&

31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

Group Company
b1 | NG
As at As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
=ZH=t+-H =A=t-H ZA=t+-H =A=t-H
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E--§ ZF——F ~B-C% —F——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
J7f3 FET FET FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERZE 15 119,507 148,364 - —
Investment properties REME 16 2,597 2172 — =
Leasehold land under operating leases BERERT RELTHR
and land use rights TIHEAE 17 17,994 17,721 — =
Intangible assets BYVEE 18 390,322 394,946 - =
Interests in subsidiaries NN $ 19 - — 656,069 596,361
Available-for-sale financial assets EHESRER 21 - 2,109 - —
Deferred tax assets ERHIBEE 33 12,161 27,089 - =
Other non-current assets EthERBEE 22 10,396 11,316 - —
553,067 603,717 656,069 596,361
Current assets RBEE
Inventories "& 23 285,938 248,138 - —
Biological assets EMEE 24 9,182 8,499 - =
Trade and other receivables EoRWFEREMELTE 25 201,590 201,937 47 2,447
Amount due from a subsidiary KB ARZE 40(c) - — 590 4,050
Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity FWAREHIBENE 40(d) - - 305 2875
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER 2% 85,509 96,416 - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEER 2% 909,414 983,549 736,106 827,347
1,491,633 1,538,539 737,048 836,719
Total assets BEAE 2,044,700 2,142,256 1,393,117 1,433,080

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 35 AR 0 a%

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

Group Company
pie- 1| LN
As at As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
=H=t+-H =A=t-H =ZhA=t+-H =A=t-H
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f ZF——F g% —F——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
J/7f73 FET FET FET FET
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company ~ AATRRELES
Share capital AR 27 134,660 135,968 134,660 135,968
Reserves G 28 1,140,651 1,378,675 1,136,190 1,206,281
1,275,311 1,514,643 1,270,850 1,342,249
Non-controlling interests FEntER 5,207 4416 - —
Total equity ERAH 1,280,518 1,519,059 1,270,850 1,342,249
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings 8 29 328,796 234,300 - —
Trade and other payables BORMNTERAMERNTE 30 376,160 365,313 32,956 1,461
Amount due to a subsidiary NG 40(c) - — 89,311 89,370
Derivative financial instruments ITHEERTIA 31 636 1,089 - —
Income tax liabilities FriEtiaE 1,125 4,577 - —
Provisions 2E 32 17,264 = — =
723,981 605,279 122,267 90,831
Non-current liabilities FrRBEE
Borrowings e 29 9,914 11,903 - —
Deferred tax liabilities ERERBAR 33 676 545 - =
Deferred income EEBA 1,933 1,666 - —
Other non-current liabilities LY Ei0E)= 34 27,678 3,804 - -
40,201 17,918 - —
Total liabilities BEEE 764,182 623,197 122,267 90,831
Total equity and liabilities EERakes 2,044,700 2,142,256 1,393,117 1,433,080
Net current assets RBEETH 767,652 933,260 614,781 745,888
Total assets less current liabilities EEEEARDAE 1,320,719 1,536,977 1,270,850 1,342,249
Approved by the Board of Directors on 14th June 2012: RZF-—ZHFRATHBERESEHE
Yu Wang Tak REE Géran Sture Malm
Chairman and Executive Director Non-Executive Director
FEFENTESE HHITESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEEREER

Year ended 31st March 2012 BE —ZE——F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

HRARRRIERS
Non-controlling
Share capital Reserves Sub-total interests Total
g Gl it FEmIMER ot
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT BT FET FAT FAT
(Note 28)
(Wit 28)
Balances at 1st April 2010 RZB-SENA-B &S 135,968 1,870,967 2,006,935 3,287 2,010,172
Comprehensive income 2EE
Profit for the year FRaEA = 21,892 21,892 425 22,317
Other comprehensive income/ EhaEbzs/ (58)
(loss) o
Available-for-sale financial MRNESHEE
assets:
Changes in fair value RRERE = 244 244 = 244
Reclassification adjustments Rt EMATA
for gains included in the FaBax
consolidated income Wi
statement as a result of BERARRE
the disposal o — (676) (676) — (676)
Currency translation BRnEEE
differences: _
Reclassification adjustments REERXRZHER
for exchange differences B
included in the LeRERe
consolidated income EREE
statement upon the {ELER
disposal of a jointly- PERE
controlled entity e = 50,420 50,420 = 50,420
Currency translation BERERRE
differences of foreign 4
operations — (19,037) (19,037) 373 (18,664)
Total other comprehensive income  Efti 2 ENE 25 — 30,951 30,951 373 31,324
Total comprehensive income for FR2ENHAE
the year — 52,843 52,843 798 53,641
Share repurchase BERR — (1,264) (1,264) — (1,264)
Special dividend (note 13) BRI S (2 13) — (543,871) (543,871) — (543,871)
Capital contribution from non- FRTI R TR
controlling interests — — — 381 381
Balances at 31st March 2011 and  R=ZF——%£=A=+-A )
at 1st April 2011 “T-—ENA-AzER 135,968 1,378,675 1,514,643 4,416 1,519,059
Comprehensive income RERE
Profit/(loss) for the year ENatl/ (BE) - (241,061) (241,061) 331 (240,730)
Other comprehensive income/ A2 a4, (EE)
(loss) o
Available-for-sale financial MRNESHEE
assets:
Changes in fair value MEEEH - (443) (443) - (443)
Reclassification adjustments RiLEMHEALA
for gains included in the Bax Wt
consolidated income EipE L
statement as a result
of the disposal e - (700) (700) - (700)
Currency translation differences BBz SHHEEE
of foreign operations - 7,529 7,529 267 7,196
Total other comprehensive income  Efti 2 AN &2 - 6,386 6,386 267 6,653
Total comprehensive income/  FR2ENE /(51]) 8
(loss) for the year - (234,675) (234,675) 598 (234,077)
Share repurchase B - (4,428) (4,428) - (4,428)
Cancellation of shares HEEEERA
repurchased o (1,308) 1,079 (229) - (229)
Capital contribution from non- FEHEER T E
controlling interests - - - 193 193
Balances at 31st March 2012 R-E-——F=A=+—-Hy
& 134,660 1,140,651 1,275,311 5,207 1,280,518
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2012 B —ZE——F=A=+—HILFE

2011
5
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HizF FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBECHERE
Net cash flows from/(used in) REEBHEL (FR)Z
operations RemnEFHE 35 (137,993) 55,629
Interest paid BFE (19,602) (13,681)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEFEH (807) (477)
Mainland China enterprise income BT B A I SRS B
tax paid (4,830) (2,585)
Overseas income tax paid EEINRTEHS (79) (8,574)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEEHES,/ (ER)Z
operating activities RenEFE (163,311) 30,312
Cash flows from investing activities REZFEZHEHRE
Additions of property, plant and NEME BB &L
equipment (29,774) (47,249)
Additions of leasehold land under ANEKEHEE NHE LM
operating leases and land use R st fsh FAHE
rights — (1,961)
Additions of intangible assets RNEEREE — (249)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BB NEE
plant and equipment FriS kIR 70 35
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHREESHEE
available-for-sale financial assets FTiS 508 1,823 1,618
Proceeds from disposal of a jointly- & AL IEREN B E TS
controlled entity KIE 36 — 352,396
Interest received 2 U F S 7,762 6,016
Decrease in time deposits with U B R T2 ER BB 6
original maturity of more than =AAZEHFR
three months when acquired A — 172
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEIEIRRITERZBL
bank deposits (3%hn) 14,010 (12,085)
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEERBFTEL, (ER)Z
investing activities R (6,109) 298,743
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

Year ended 31st March 2012 BE —ZE——F=A=+—HIFE

2011
—T——%
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FHET TFET
Cash flows from financing activities F&EEFHESHE
Share repurchase B2 O] I& 19 (4,428) (1,264)
Special dividend paid o5 BIRS 2 — (543,871)
Capital contribution from non- FEFE ARSI E
controlling interests 193 381
New bank loans FIBRITER 797,998 949,005
Repayment of bank loans and BEFTERNLRERL
capital elements of finance BIARER S
leases (700,405) (897,094)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEEEELS(FH)Z
financing activities RenEFH 93,358 (492,843)
Decrease in cash and cash HERBELEEBERZ
equivalents DA (76,062) (163,788)
Cash and cash equivalents at FPzHERRELZEEIER
beginning of year 982,703 1,133,009
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEE RS E - EEE
changes, net 2,773 13,482
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBESRAESZEEIER
end of year 909,414 982,703
Analysis of balances of cash and HERALEZEER LR
cash equivalents DT
Cash at banks, other time deposits RITHEE - HhEHEZ R
and cash on hand FEES 26 339,662 497,822
Non-pledged time deposits with PSR RETRIHE A
original maturity of three months =B A AT 2 E K E
or less when acquired FHITE =R 569,752 485,727
Cash and cash equivalents as SEMBIRRARH RS
stated in the consolidated kIS EMEIEE
statement of financial position 909,414 983,549
Bank overdrafts RITEY — (846)
Cash and cash equivalents as HERERERIF LTS
stated in the consolidated kIS E=EIEE
statement of cash flows 909,414 982,703
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities (collectively, the

“Group”) are principally engaged in the following businesses

during the year:

o hi-tech distribution and services: trading of surface
mount technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and the provision of related

installation, training, repair and maintenance services

for SMT assembly equipment;

. fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products: refining
and sale of fish oil, processing and sale of fishmeal,
manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed products,

aquaculture and processing and sale of aquatic

products;

° branded food: developing and operating Burger King

restaurants in Hong Kong and Macau; and

° investment holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
and of its principal place of business is Unit 1-5, 16th Floor,
Futura Plaza, 111-113 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Hong

Kong.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on The Growth

Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by

the Company’s Board of Directors on 14th June 2012.

—REH

I BRMERAEBR AR (AR ) HH
BRARARAREHER (B ARE]F
AEBWELATES :

e BRREmOIHERRYE : REWKE
Ao ([SMT D ARRE  #ERE
BHES - ARREHESMTAERE
ZHBRE Bl #ERERER
7

e AW RAMRKEER: BMBR
RHE BHMIREHE - KEH
PEMBERFE  KEERE K
EEMMTREE

e RREEBR NEBREBRMBRLK
& Burger King &g ' &
o  HEER-
AREARBEERE-NLN\—FQ/ER
BREGMKIZERCER AR - H
o ffft 3% == B2 Z Hb ik A& Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda @ MEEZ & XM 2t BE
BEEDR A 111- 11358 5 A E 5 1612
1-5% °
ARE 2 EBBRREBHERZIMERA
A (B P 1) BIZEAR ET o

BRRERAN WEMBRRUETE
5 R BEDHEERET TR -

hEVBRREN T ——F A +HAH
RARAEFTSHETIE -

2011/12 ANNUAL REPORT &3k

52



53

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for available-for-sale financial assets, biological assets
and derivative financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value or fair value less costs to sell,

where appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conforming
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
— Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation — Classification of Rights

Issues
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments
Amendments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
2010 May 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding
the impact of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments
to HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial

effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in
which persons and key management personnel
affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption
from the general related party disclosure
requirements for transactions with a government
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same government
as the reporting entity. The accounting policy for
related parties has been revised to reflect the
changes in the definitions of related parties under
the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details
of the related party transactions, including the
related comparative information, are included in

note 40 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R MY EE

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May

2010 sets out amendments to a number of

HKFRSs. There are separate transitional provisions

for each standard. While the adoption of some

of the amendments may result in changes in

accounting policies, none of these amendments

has had a significant financial impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.

Details of the key amendments most applicable to

the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The
amendment clarifies that the amendments
to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates
precede the application of HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the
scope of measurement choices for non-
controlling interests. Only the components
of non-controlling interests that are
present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
another HKFRS.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A5 R MY EE

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b) (continued)

L]

(continued)

The amendment also added explicit
guidance to clarify the accounting
treatment for non-replaced and
voluntarily replaced share-based

payment awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies
that an analysis of each component
of other comprehensive income can
be presented either in the statement
of changes in equity or in the notes to
the financial statements. The Group
elects to present the analysis of each
component of other comprehensive
income in the statement of changes in

equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements: The amendment
clarifies that the consequential
amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21,
HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall be
applied prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st July
2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied

earlier.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial & Reporting Standards —
Government Loans'

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial & Reporting Standards
— Severn Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters'

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets'

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilties*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements'

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement'

HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes —
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets’

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits'
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements'
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine'
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has, in June 2012,
issued Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle which sets out a collection of amendments
to HKFRSs. The amendments contained in Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2015
Further information about those changes that are

expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure — Transfers of Financial Assets introduce
more extensive quantitative and qualitative disclosure
requirements regarding transfer transactions of financial
assets (e.g. securitisations), including information for
understanding the possible effects of any risks that may
remain with the entity that transferred the assets. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1st April
2012 and comparative disclosures are not required for
any period beginning before that date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities set out new disclosure requirements in
relation to the offsetting models of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also improve the
transparency in the reporting of how companies mitigate
credit risk, including disclosure of related collateral
pledged or received. The Group expects to adopt the

amendments from 1st April 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
("OClI”).

presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the

The remainder of the change in fair value is

fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirely. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1st April 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27
and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also includes the issues raised in
HK(SIC)-Int 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10

from 1st April 2013.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 11

from 1st April 2013.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities that are previously included in
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements. HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces
a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 12 from 1st
April 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12 and the consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 from 1st April
2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1st April 2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon derecognition or settlement) would
be presented separately from items which will never
be reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the

amendments from 1st April 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of
short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19
(2011) from 1st April 2013.

HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the requirements for
offsetting financial instruments. The amendments
address inconsistencies in current practice when
applying the offsetting criteria and clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalents to net settlements. The Group expects to

adopt the amendments from 1st April 2014.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities for the year ended
31st March 2012. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar

accounting policies that may exist.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that

results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the income
statement. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the income statement or retained profits,

as appropriate.
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly
or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its

activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries that are not
classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that
is subject to joint control, resulting in none of
the participating parties having unilateral control
over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled

entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled
entities are accounted for by proportionate
consolidation, which involve recognising its share
of the jointly-controlled entities’ assets, liabilities,
income and expenses with similar items in the
consolidated financial statements on a line-by-
line basis. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries and the jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the jointly-controlled entities, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether it measures the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition
costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date

through the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
which is deemed to be an asset or liability will
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in the income statement or as a change to
other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it will not
be remeasured until subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. In instances where the
contingent consideration does not fall within the
scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in the income statement as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31st March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those

units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c) Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parities
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and

the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits or losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by
the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of

the joint venture agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Joint ventures (continued)

2.6

A joint venture is treated as:

(a)

(b)

a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
control or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and is in a position
to exercise significant influence over the joint

venture; or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over, the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a holding

company of the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(0

(if)

(iiif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a holding company,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

2.7 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors who makes

strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income

statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “finance income or
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement
within “other income and gains” and “general and

administrative expenses”, respectively.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
income statement as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as
available for sale are included in the investment

revaluation reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A5 R MY EE

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the entities
within the Group (none of which has the currency

of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a

2.9

functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting

period;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to write off
their costs to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance Over the lease terms
lease
Buildings 20 to 50 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 25 years
Furniture and fixtures and office 3to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
Plant and machinery and 3 to 10 years

demonstration machinery

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. It is not depreciated
until completion of construction and the asset is
available for use. The cost of completed construction
works is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in

accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are

recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investment property

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by

the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of the investment property over
its estimated useful life. Where the carrying amount of
an investment property is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes

its deemed cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land under operating leases and land use
rights

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and

equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The acquired trademarks and licences, non-compete
agreements, distribution agreements, customer
relationships, technology knowhow, and development
rights and franchises are shown at historical cost.
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value
as at the date of acquisition. The Group’s intangible
assets have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of trademarks, non-compete agreements,
distribution agreements, customer relationships, and
development rights and franchises is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Customer relationships 3 to 4 years

Trademarks 9 to 15 years

Distribution agreements 3 years

Development rights and franchise 10 years
fees

Non-compete agreements, included 5 to 6 years

in others
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each

reporting date.
Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration is

recognised in equity.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method or weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at their fair value less
costs to sell. The fair value of the biological assets
is determined with reference to the market prices for
similar assets. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition
of the biological assets at fair value less costs to sell
and from a change in fair value less costs to sell of the
biological assets is included in the income statement for

the period in which it arises.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less

accumulated impairment losses.

A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all the amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered as indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited

to the income statement.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Financial assets
2181 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this

category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables” and “cash
and cash equivalents” in the statement of

financial position.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Financial assets (continued)

2.18.1 Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

2182 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities.
The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in profit or loss, while translation
differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Financial assets (continued)

2182 Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in

the income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the
Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, a discounted cash
flow analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little

as possible on entity-specific inputs.

2.19 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market

price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Financial liabilities

2201

2202

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, derivative financial instruments
and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged
on these financial liabilities.

2.

EESTHRBER)

220 ¢s@ER
2201 WX ERRTE

EREFERFEIOREER
ZEMBEIBEREAAED
BRUNERREZ /AR
ERREE X0 BEAEESR
EREME R 2 R TAZITE
TAGRER) - REERNE
ERTRAEREEE A

Fﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%?ﬂ TR AR
R MERREERSMEE
FEIE R ZRRATER

rEEZERBEEREESE
Wk R b Bt MR IR - AT
ERTARGEERRER -

2202 B#qE

TREBEZHEEFERFAT

DR

HRAEF R RE 2k FE
THEE

BAREINRINIEREREZ
ERABEREREXZIZER
BERRFERREE /R
RAEINRANBREEZ S
mEE -

Bz BT RERHE
AleRARSEO ERRFIER
Zo WD RBREASEEA
Mo WHEER/BAEER
39T R EL PGP Y
MTAZITAESEMTA - BRIE
ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ/\iﬁ?ﬁilﬂ%ﬁbiﬁ
BREHPTHE BRGNS
REFBERS #ﬂ’Ex%ZETﬁ
ZEBBNERRER - NEE
RERZ AR FERBL T
EEMHEZESRE BRI
ME e

of

\

20|

2011/12 ANNUAL REPORT &3k

84



85

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

2202

2203

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria of HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the

income statement.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Financial liabilities (continued)
2204 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.
2205 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that
are traded in active markets is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction
for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow

analysis; and option pricing models.
Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments do
not qualify for hedge accounting. They are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the

income statement.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or

less, and bank overdrafts.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits which are not
restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of

financial position.
Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares

are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Trade and other
payables are repayable upon the receipt of invoices and

credit terms granted by suppliers are up to 90 days.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facilities to which they relate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.
Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions,
where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable

that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes and liabilities relate to income
taxes levies by the same taxation authority on either the

taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is

an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
2.27 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long
service leave is recognised when it accrues to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as

a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity

leave is not recognised until the time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHRBER)

2.27 Employee benefits (continued) 2.27 EERF(E)

(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays contributions to
state/trustee-administered funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised

as employment costs when they are due.
(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

2.28 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount

has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:
(a) Sales revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to
the customer, and the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured or when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of

goods have passed to the buyer.

(b) Commission, service and management fee

income

Commission, service and management fee income
is recognised when the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual services
provided as a proportion of the total services to

be provided.
(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion

basis using the effective interest rate method.
(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on the straight-line

basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
the delivery of goods and the provision of services is

recorded as receipts in advance.
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant

asset by equal annual instalments.
Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on the

straight-line basis over the period of the leases.
Operating leases (as the lessor)

Assets leased out under operating leases are included
in property, plant and equipment in the statement of
financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar property, plant and equipment. Rental income
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease

term.
Finance leases (as the lessor)

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the
present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as

unearned finance income.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a

constant periodic rate of return.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.34

2.35

Finance leases (as the lessee)

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has acquired substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the leases’
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased properties and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short term and other long term payables. The
interest element of the finance costs is charged to
the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Leased assets are depreciated using the straight-line

basis over their expected useful lives to residual values.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.36

2.37

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at inception,
but performs a liability adequacy test at the end of each
reporting period by comparing its net liability regarding
the financial guarantee with the amount that would be
required if the financial guarantee would result in a
If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive obligation

present legal or constructive obligation.
amount, the entire difference is recognised in the

income statement immediately.
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividend is approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative

financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Risk management is carried out by the finance
department of the Company under policies approved
by the Board of Directors. The finance department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The Board of Directors provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,

and investment of excess liquidity.
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and other Asia Pacific regions and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (the
“US dollar”), Japanese Yen, and Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in

foreign operations.

Management has set up a policy to require
entities within the Group to manage
their foreign exchange risk against
their functional currency. To manage
their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities, entities
within the Group use forward contracts.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional

currency.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated

in the relevant foreign currencies.

The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
US dollar at a range of rates between 7.75
and 7.85, the foreign exchange exposure
between the US dollar and the Hong Kong
dollar is therefore limited.

At 31st March 2012, if Japanese Yen had
weakened/strengthened by 20% against the
Hong Kong dollar with all other variables
held constant, loss for the year would
have been HK$7,358,000 lower/higher
(2011: profit for the year would have been
HK$8,276,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of Japanese Yen denominated
trade payables and trade receivables. At
31st March 2011, equity would have been
HK$422,000 lower/higher, arising mainly
from foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Japanese Yen denominated
equity securities classified as available for

sale.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31st March 2012, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 20% against the Hong
Kong dollar with all other variables held
constant, gain for the year would have been
HK$1,623,000 higher/lower (2011: gain
for the year would have been HK$900,000
higher/lower), mainly a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of
RMB denominated trade receivables and

trade payables.

At 31st March 2012, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 20% against the Hong
Kong dollar with all other variables
held constant, equity would have been
HK$19,684,000 higher/lower (2011:
HK$15,110,000 higher/lower), arising
mainly from foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB denominated trade
receivables, trade payables and borrowings.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk arising from its available-for-sale
financial assets as at 31st March 2011. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price

risk.

For the year ended 31st March 2011,
the available-for-sale financial assets
were mainly listed equity instruments in
Japan and if the fair value of these equity
instruments increased or decreased by
5%, the Group’s equity would have been

increased or decreased by HK$105,000.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Price risk (continued)

The Group is exposed to financial risks
arising from changes in prices of fish and
abalone. The Group does not anticipate
that the fish and abalone prices will decline
significantly in the foreseeable future and,
therefore, has not entered into derivative
or other contracts to manage the risk of
a decline in fish and abalone prices. The
Group reviews its outlook for fish and
abalone prices regularly to consider the

need for active financial risk management.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits,
the income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

The cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits are interest-bearing at
floating rate and expose the Group to the

cash flow interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk from financial liabilities
arises from borrowings. Borrowings that are
subject to variable rates expose the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

At 31st March 2012, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year would have been
HK$2,518,000 higher/lower (2011: profit for
the year would have been HK$1,629,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade receivables and
certain other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread

over a number of counterparties and customers.

The carrying amount of the receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets. The
credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
is considered by the Group to be minimal as
the bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
counterparties. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.
Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit

lines.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises
undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.
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3.1

F——F=A=+-H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on

exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,

the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

3.

MR EEE)
3.1 HMERKBEZE)
(c) FHEELREE(E)
BEmME  efEfroo e
BIBITE 2R EREEIERZ
EHERMS @ DIMEREE

ERAIFEEREREMEEA
TSGR ZRAEER
ERZ&RHRFAEZRS
mHE - RMRITEEZE
HIA DT IR BE SRS F R AR
B o

TRUFHRAREENIHA
Z%Uﬁ%%ﬁf‘aﬁi%%/ F HAREE
TREERFEENTLESRE

(ER E‘JHﬂELﬂ DA o RAPT
KEZHBEREHNABARS

2%

M °

HFH\W

On demand or Between Between
less than 1and 2 2and 5
1 year years years Total
15K 122% 25 ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
At 31st March 2012 R=B-Z%
=ZA=t-H
Borrowings EL 333,085 5,352 5,327 343,764
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 636 — - 636
Trade and other payables BARNTEK
EiERTE 376,160 - - 376,160
709,881 5,352 5,327 720,560
At 31st March 2011 RZZ—%
=A=t+-A
Borrowings 58 239,007 3,101 10,239 252,347
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 1,089 = = 1,089
Trade and other payables BHRAFER
HipENTIR 365,313 — = 365,313
605,409 3,101 10,239 618,749
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31st March 2012, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from last year, was to
maintain net cash position. The net cash positions at

31st March 2012 and 2011 were analysed as follows:

3.

KRR ERE®)
3.2 BAEKERE

AEEEREAZ AR RRER
SERAEERBEFALEREEL
& ARSI R E 3R R E i B R A
#® AREREE ZERNRERD
BB
REFIFAREARRE  ~NEEA
HERNERZEE  BRRERZER
Ol - HITHBROER/BLEEN
HEEESHIA °

HE-_Z——F=ZA=+—HLHF
B AEBREAEFZERE  #1H
FHREMRR  ZE—ZFN_F
——F=A=t+—HZFHEaMHR
DA

2011

—E——%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Borrowings (note 29) BB (HE29) 338,710 246,203
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and i ReERRESEFEIER

pledged bank deposits (note 26) LA B IR ER1TIF 50
(K17 26) 994,923 1,079,965
Net cash FIRE 656,213 833,762
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31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels

have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that

is, derived from prices) (level 2)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3)

The following table presents the Group’s financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value as at
31st March 2012:

HXRREE®)
3.3 AREMHE

TRIUABEESMEAAEBIRZ
TRMIE - TRFHRZAELT

s FREEXRBEEAERMSL
ZHMEBEOCRERE) (BH—) -

o  ERANVEREUR)KEEEN
BA%E A& BUR) (£ AR AR —
FHREMINZAIBREERE
BEEEBR ) -

e  [EMFEERABEMSHIELZ
BEEXBEREGENTAEER
2B) (BHI=) -

TRETAEER_ZE——F=A
—t+—HEAREFEZEMEE
raffE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
®Al— ®Al= &51= @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE7 FET FET FET
Liabilities &
Financial liabilities at fair value RRAEFIRLNE
through profit or loss mREeHARE
— Derivative financial —THESRMIA
instruments - 636 - 636

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2.
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBEREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMEFE)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TRINHER=-TE——F=HA=1+—
and liabilities that are measured at fair value as at B ARnEfEZAEBeREE
31st March 2011: REfE :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HAl— HA= &A= et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A/t ELRERE
— Equity securities — RAEES 2,109 — — 2,109
Liabilities =1
Financial liabilities at fair value BAREFIRTAE
through profit or loss nEEZSHEE
— Derivative financial —TESRTIA
instruments — 1,089 — 1,089

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
primarily listed equity investments classified as trading

securities or available for sale.

EXREBRMBSAEEZERTA
ZARE REBRERAR TS
WETE o 1 R(E A BER K EHA
XM RH5E B FRE
B EERFREERBRE M
ZERBRRZAFRAUNERNE
HBEZMERS  BZMBER
BRER AEERAEZEREE
FIRAzmERER/BTLZTSE
AEB-ZETAEMARG— - A
BA—ZTATIZEBEIRRRS
BHHAHHEZ EHRARE -
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31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMEFE)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not WHERKERTSANEE 22 @b

traded in an active market (for example, over-the- TEAMWMBINTETER) ZRBR

counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation B SRAGHEFRHEE  25MH

techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the ERITEE RN A A 8= 1588 (0

use of observable market data where it is available and B) BOKBERZEEMET o 4

rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If AEESRTIAAARBEMGZMEE

all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument ABEBERAUBRYE - AZITER
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If AR = o i —IB A EERERE
one or more of the significant inputs are not based on WHERABEMSGEE - AlZT

observable market data, the instrument is included in BMARRI= o

level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial RS em T AETHEZFEEMR

instruments include: ERITGEIE

0 Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar . HUTEZMEMEXRZE
instruments HRE -

. Fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts . REIMES B2 A BB HR
determined using forward exchange rates at the R RAERETE ' fTEE
end of the reporting period, with the resulting EgREERE -
value discounted back to present values

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow . BT AR RRES
analysis, that are used to determine fair values of - BULETHE#REMT A,
the remaining financial instruments NAfE -

There was no change in level 3 instruments during the FAWERAN= 288 - TR

year. The following table represents the changes in level 3 HE—_T——F=A=+—HIEF

instruments for the year ended 31st March 2011. ERR= 2%

2011
—T——%F
HK$'000
FET

Derivative equity instrument TEEMIA

At the beginning of the reporting period R ERFRHI 6,900

Gain recognised in the income statement RI8ZEKRER 2 WKz (6,900)

At the end of the reporting period R ER R HAR =
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom reflect the related actual results. The estimates that

have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

4.1

4.2

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, where it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives; and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation expense in the future periods.

Goodwill impairment assessment

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.13 to the financial statements. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
has been allocated to individual cash-generating units
which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast
operating performance and cash flows. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit has been
determined based on value in use calculations. Cash
flow projections are prepared on the basis of reasonable
assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market
conditions, and are discounted appropriately.

B ST et R A M

AEEREBESRLKEMAR(BERSR
AREAREBATHESHRZEN)HE
BFTIEZ fhat RAVBETETTRHA

AEEEARKELGEFRBR - FIB2E
AHEFTIEER  ROGRBEBTRES
R RARBEZAH T AR RFEZ
BEMBBEZREAEFEEERBE 5
AIFRIAT e

4.1

4.2

NE BERREUARERLEEZ
AIERFEHRRRERE

AEBEEEBEEYE  BENM
RAEA R BT B E 2 fhET Al E A F
B RpEERARTERS - It
BEETRBBEUEE RIEZY
X BEERREAREVEEZR
BRAERFHRZBELREL -
AE A FE BRI AR FERARE
AlEEEERmTERS - Lal
HERMBR D ER I E 2 RIMER
KR EE - EREEFHARE
HBESGAERFHAR : MERF
SHREEM L[ RBKEETR -
E Hidm 5 AT S BOAT A B A H R FUER
EBEEE EmMNERRBME 25T
Efx -

AB R ER

REBERBETERKRHM L2137
ZEFBE SFAARERLH
BAEMMBE - BUBRERFANS - A7
WEEEDDEEEFIRSELE
i MABEMDREFREER
BRBEREETRER - BE
FHEELSBM 2 I RESETIE
EREEFEEIEE REVER
BITIIR A RBRIRIT AR R Z &
BERLAELFETRRER -
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.3

4.4

4.5

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer demand and competitor actions. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite
lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors as well as the current
market condition, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
the end of each reporting period.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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BEEsH e RAE )

4.3

4.4

4.5

FEZA2EFE
FEZA R FEREREERA
BRZEAEE RAUZKEESR

e ZEHFDRERITHREE
PUHEEmRBEHSKRIEL
AERPBRAE M EFHFE
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FEMEERE(FERN)

AREB SN K BRI RF (A2 EIE
ERMEESEFEEMBETR -
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R AR E B T 7T A m B 1T (E R
Ao BEERREELFEUZEE
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REEARORNZHEER ST K
BzE HABETERLEEE
ZEERAGE - B ERAEE
K BEEEVGAGBTEERRSE
SENZERRIRER  WEE
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.6

4.7

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to tax losses, depends on management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
Provision

Management estimates the provision for onerous
contracts being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected
to be received under those non-cancellable operating
lease contracts in connection of the branded food
operation. The expected economic benefits are
estimated based on net discounted cash flows of the
branded food operation while unavoidable costs are
the rental payments that the Group is obligated to make

under the non-cancellable operating lease contracts.

Management conducted an assessment of the
non-cancellable contracts and had a provision of
HK$38,034,000 (2011: Nil) for onerous contracts at 31st
March 2012 (note 32).

In estimating the discounted cash flows of the branded
food operation, management has used a discount rate
of 11%.

4.

BRE e RHE (@)

4.6

4.7

8%
S B E BB R O

FIiSH - EEEMGSHBERSRE

FEELERAEH - EAFEBB
B BETRHRFAEMSIRZ&
RUEBEEEMITHEED MLt E
EMZREBRBERERILERZ
TETR - ALEZRHEEED
It B8 T B 2 P 1S B SR AR TR
Rfs

REEHAEE(TRERIAER
BRI ERERMBIARIEERE
ARARKERTREFNME - BERE
RERATETR -

BE

EREMAFBRANBEERERR
ERMEBZ AAHGEREEES
WA RPN 2R BRI EE
HARBEZEANERMEERN
meo BHEEMNSREMERMS
BZBRBEREFREMET  MA
KA RRBRAEBRE A
REHEEHEER T 2 B EbA ©

EEER DA HEHE L EITE
YR —F=A=+—8BHE
B & #) # 1%38,034,0008 (= &
——F : T)(K3E32) °

A RBERBRXBZURARERE
B EEECRA 1% 2BEE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BARETHETTRAB )
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.8 Biological assets 4.8 H£YEE
Management assesses the fair value of biological assets BEEEBMHTEMEEZ AR BT
and the estimates on costs to sell of these assets. A ATHEZEEMEE KA © 51
market approach is adopted in the valuation which REEAMSE BEERBUEEZ
considers the recent market prices for similar assets, WREME  WHERMEELFAE
with adjustments made to market prices to reflect the ARBRFTEE A EERE TS LR
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to &2 2 RS R I gE - aTfh IR B 6 3%
the market comparative. The valuation also includes EAREEEBECE TEERK
some inherent assumptions on the value of those MEMABEEMRREEREZ
comparable assets and other assumptions in relation to ﬁﬁﬁfﬁi*ﬂ c ZEMBBE R 2 #
the current market condition and economic environment. BRHEEEMEEZ ARBEREK
Changes in these assumptions and estimates could éﬁ%%ﬂ o EMEBERBRARZ
have a material effect on the determination of the fair BREERY BHREMFE24HE -
value of the biological assets. The carrying amount of
biological assets at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.
5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EXE -WARSEESH
INFORMATION
5.1 Turnover and revenue 51 EXERKA
Turnover represents sales of goods, revenue from EEFERREEER EmMRm
branded food operation, commission and other service EBEEZKRA > e REAMRE
income. The amounts of each category of revenue WA o B L EBSWAERIR
recognised during the year from continuing operations FABRZBASTEANT
are as follows:
2011
—ZT——%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of goods HEEM 1,604,523 2,009,223
Revenue from branded food operation HRERMEBEEZIRA 143,006 137,622
Commission and other service income & ME MR A 32,117 21,211
1,779,646 2,168,056
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5.

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2

Operating segment information

For management purpose, the Group, including its
jointly-controlled entities, is organised into three major
reportable operating segments — hi-tech distribution
and services, fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products,
and branded food. The hi-tech distribution and services
and fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products operating
segments derive revenue from the sale of goods.
Branded food operation segment derives revenue
through the operation of quick service restaurants in
Hong Kong under the Burger King brand.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
except that finance income, finance costs as well as
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from

such measurement.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, leasehold land under
operating leases and land use rights, intangible assets,
other non-current assets, inventories, biological assets
and trade and other receivables. Unallocated assets
comprise deferred tax assets, pledged bank deposits,
available-for-sale financial assets, cash and cash
equivalents, and corporate and others.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other
payables, provisions, deferred income and other non-
current liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise
deferred tax liabilities, income tax liabilities, borrowings,
derivative financial instruments and corporate and
others.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land under operating
leases and land use rights, and intangible assets.

58

EEE - WARSPEER(®)

5.2

RESWEH

HEEME  AEE(PEELRE
SIER) D BB RRESD
B — SREERSHEERE A
H BBRKEEMRMERM °
SREEMAHEERY - AN A
HMRKEEMADHEALES RME
FERA - mBERGBEBKDERBR
MREE A Burger King M4 & &
RS BB ERMEEWA -

EEEIRERAESEZEENE
ZEE NBELEBERIKEK
RAFEIRK - DBRBATIRA
B ME A, (BE)  AEEE
BRATEBATE R, (1R 2 EREE
1TaFfE - KBBEBRAABHRADERN
(BR)ZFAENAEREEKRIE
BAERN, (BE) 287 —
B HBRA  BBEBRARE
BREXEREFEFGTIBREER -

DHREETERBREME BEER
B WEME KEHEHETEHE
TR tERE BEEE  H
MIERBEE 78 EMEER
HEERE  ROREERREER
EHRIBEE  THEAEH 2K
HRTTER - AHHESREE
RekBREEERE  UAREER
Hit o

DHBBEIRERESREMEN
A BE - BEREWAREAMIER
PEE- ANEBEBFBEELNIEA
BE FERARE BE 14£%
BT EARDEREAM -

BEARAXBEME  BFE&EE-
ReMEBRNHEL MR L ER
BARETLEERNE
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

5. EBE@H - WARIEER#E)

52 RESWERE)

There are no significant sales between the operating FAR ZEEKER B ES E
segments during the year (2011: Nil). The operating E(ZE——F E)  FEZEE
results for the year are as follows: FEWT :
Group rEE
Year ended 31st March 2012
HE-Z-—F=fA=1-ALEE
Hi-tech Fishmeal, fish
distribution il and aquatic
and services products Branded food
operation operatlon operation
nﬂﬁﬁunnﬁﬁ kR RER y
REBES KEERER RERRER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET TE7n FEr
Revenue WA
— Sales to external customers — HHRPHEE 892,404 744,236 143,006 1,779,646
Segment results before amortisation ?Dﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬂ‘ Z
of intangible assets YL 23,461 (24,426) (121,571) (122,536)
Amortisation of intangible assets ﬂﬁﬁ?%iﬁ - (1,046) (438) (1,484)
Segment results PELE 23,461 (25,472) (122,009) (124,020)
Finance income BBKA 15,333
Finance costs BB (19,602)
Corporate and other unallocated REREBASERER
expenses (95,082)
Loss before income tax BAGERAEE (223,371)
Income tax expense SR (17,359)
Loss for the year FRER (240,730)
Capital expenditure: ERRR
Segment assets PREE } 8,268 22,404 3,999 34,671
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMRAREAR
capital expenditure 536
35,207
Depreciation: g :
Segment assets PREE X 8,192 6,874 11,115 26,181
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMARIRSTE
depreciation 253
26,434
Amortisation i - 1,472 437 1,909
Write-down of inventories to net TEWMITXIQ/?TE
realisable value, net B - 13,985 - 13,985
Provision for impairment of trade and ‘%%Fuﬁ(mﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂl
other receivables, net FERERE 5 4,401 3,716 - 8,117
Provision for impairment of property,  #1% - Jﬂ%&uﬂ%m@ﬁﬁ
plant and equipment * (note 15) #15) - - 40,580 40,580
Provision for impairment of intangible ﬂﬁ/ééﬁ BEE
assets * (note 18) (Wit 18) - - 2,112 2,112
Write-off of intangible assets * HEETEAE"
(note 18) (H1i£18) - - 1,028 1,028
Provision for onerous contracts * BEANEE"
(note 32) (H#32) - - 38,034 38,034
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5.

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

*

During the year ended 31st March 2012, the Group has
entered into an agreement to terminate the exclusivity
right to develop franchise business in Hong Kong and
Macau, in light of the continuing operating losses of the
restaurants operating under the franchise agreements
since their openings. Accordingly, the development right
with a then net carrying amount of HK$1,028,000 was
written off. Also, there is an indication that impairment
might exist. Based on the impairment assessment of
the property, plant and equipment and franchise fees of
these restaurants to reflect the Group’s latest business
strategy, impairment losses of HK$40,580,000 and
HK$2,112,000 on the property, plant and equipment and
franchise fees, respectively, are recognised during the
year to their recoverable amounts which are their values
in use. In estimating the values in use of the property,
plant and equipment and franchise fees, a pre-tax
discount rate of 11% was used.

In addition, a provision of HK$38,034,000 for onerous
contracts with respect to the operating leases of these
restaurants was recognised during the year ended
31st March 2012. The provision amount represents the
present value of the future lease payments that the Group
is presently obligated to make under non-cancellable
onerous operating lease contracts, less economic
benefits expected to be earned on those leases. The
estimate may vary as a result of changes in the utilisation
of the leased premises. The unexpired terms of the
leases range from within 1 year to 4 years. Provision has
been made for such onerous contracts based on the
estimated minimum net cost of exiting from the operating

lease contracts.

58

EEE - WARSPEER(®)

52 RESWERE)

*

REBE-T——-F=A=+—HIHF
B ERRBETHECEZEES
FERBERGEEER A58
M BERIER BB RRPIBERER
BHHEBZER - At - ERERE
%@stmo%ﬁz%ﬁﬁa%w
o LA - AR IERERR © R
#g&§§ﬁ2%¥ B 55 R aRAF LA
T A B P AT DA IR BR AN R [ B 3
ISR ZRERE - UE - BER
BEARFRTE SRR A 2 RERE
% $40,580,0007% 7T % 2,112,000
BITERFRAERZEH ARG €
(BEERAEE) - H5t9E  BER
REAREFREEBAZEAEERE
B B 1% 2 BiBIBhER =K -

N ZEEREZCEHEBBAD
2 P 1%38,034,000/ 8 TEREZE =
T —F=ZA=+—HILFEER-
B 5 FEIE AN S B IR PR AR BT RIS
BIEEEHESNAI M2 RKRES
ﬁﬁ~ﬁﬁ%§%%ﬁm%w2%%
Fz o A RAEMEZ ERE
EME o RBEAHEN ?1%14
F o AEEBRBREGCEHEAD
Z A BER AN FERZEEREN
VEH B -
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. #®EHE -WARSEBEER @)
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESFER(E)
Group rEE

Year ended 31st March 2011

HECT—F=A=T-HI%E

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REREEH BRIEEEER
Hi-tech Fishmeal, fish
distribution oil and aquatic
and services products  Branded food Chemical
_ operation operation operation Subtotal operation Total
EHRERAE AR AR
kRBEH  KEEREE  GBERGER 1Nt t25% &8
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
Revenue WA
— Sales to external customers — WIEFHE 1,565,247 465,187 137,622 2,168,056 498,285 2,666,341
Segment results before amortisation MR ER EERHA 2
of intangible assets %R 50,715 38,340 (35,314) 53,74 39,721 93,468
Amortisation of intangible assets BAEER — (2,115) (498) (2,613) (2,794) (5,407)
Segment results AEEE 50,715 36,205 (35,812) 51,128 36933 88,061
Finance income BB 5,568 247 5,815
Finance costs BIBER (10,576) (3,109) (13,685)
Provision for remeasurement to B EALHRHE
fair value less costs to sell Y& L - (12,200) (12,200)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAAE
expenses 2R (31,171) — (31,171)
Profit before income tax AR 14949 21,871 36,820
Income tax expense SR (6,832) (7671) (14,503)
Profit for the year Gyl 8,117 14,200 2317
Capital expenditure: ERRR
Segment assets NREE 314 24,839 8,972 36,952 5,752 42704
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMRARER
capital expenditure 53 822 = 822
37,774 5,752 43,526
Depreciation: HE:
Segment assets PRAE 9,449 4,691 11,660 25,800 11,209 37,009
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMADENE
depreciation 149 — 149
25,949 11,209 37,158
Amortisation it - 2,467 498 2,965 2,1% 5,759
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories & #i5,/ (BE)ZE
to net realisable value, net TERFE 58 — 1,296 — 1,296 (700) 596
Provision for impairment/ EHRUTER
(write-back of impairment) of A YGRS
receivables, net e/ (BEAR) -
it 8 (1,084) - (1,001) 910 (91)
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 58

INFORMATION (continued)

EEE - WARSPEER(®)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Group
Hi-tech
distribution
and services
operation
BNRERDH
RIRBER
HK$°000
FAT
At 31st March 2012 R=B-—%#=f=1-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PHREE 531,219
Unallocated assets: ROEEE :
Deferred tax assets BERERE
Pledged bank deposits BEBRITER
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEER
Corporate and others EREM
Total assets per the consolidated FEMBRARTZ
statement of financial position EENE
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PEAE 180,553
Unallocated liabilities: ROEAR:
Deferred tax liabilities BRFIEAE
Income tax liabilities FriEhiag
Borrowings (-]
Corporate and others RERE
Total liabilities per the consolidated  &F&BERAZ T 2
statement of financial position afEeE

5.2 RESPERE)
REHFPRZ D EEERAFELT ¢

r&E

Fishmeal, fish

oil and aquatic

products Branded food
operation operation
-V V:)d

KEEREH mERRER

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TEx TRz TE7

492,056 13,650 1,036,925

12,161

85,509

909,414

691

2,044,700

148,950 59,213 388,716

676

1,125

338,710

34,955

764,182
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. #®XEHE -WARIEBEERE)
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 REIEERGE)
Group rEE

Hi-tech Fishmeal, fish

distribution oil and aquatic

and services products Branded food
operation operation operation Total
RRRERDH B ARk
RRHER KEERFH mERmER &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET FET
At 31st March 2011 R=B--£=A=+-8
ASSETS 8E
Segment assets PEEE 512,851 449,393 65,173 1,027,417
Unallocated assets: ROEEE :
Deferred tax assets BRHEAE 27,089
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 96,416
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEER 983,549
Available-for-sale financial assets NtHESHARE 2,109
Corporate and others EREM 5,676
Total assets per the consolidated GANBMART  EELT
statement of financial position 2,142,256
LIABILITIES g
Segment liabilties SRR 202,707 146,001 19,648 368,356
Unallocated liabiliies: ADEER:
Deferred tax liabilities BRREAE 545
Income tax liabilities FrEhiaR 4,577
Borrowings e 246,203
Corporate and others PEREM 3516
Total liabilities per the consolidated &FABBMNET 2 BELE
statement of financial position 623,197
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EXEHE - WARIEER#)
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESFER(E)
Geographical information HEEHF
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEHIIEFZHA
The Group’s activities are conducted predominantly AEBEBEFTREERF
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Revenue AT - TR K S5 2
by geographical location is determined on the WATIRESBHRERD H -
basis of the destination of shipment of goods for B RUARKEERNEZ
hi-tech distribution and fishmeal, fish oil and B e - DA K b R dn oy J P
aquatic products, as well as the location of service Rt 2 ARIGFT{EHb M EEE o

performed by the branded food segment.

The following table provides an analysis of the TREEEEEL 2 AEE
Group’s revenue by geographical location: WA

2012 2011

2% —T——%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
K& B&LE 8 BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong o 247,268 - 156,671 —
Mainland China FEI A 1,380,879 - 1,931,259 10,807
Republic of Korea B - - — 366,750
Asia — Others T — Eft 141,712 - 79,403 58,689
Others Hith 9,787 - 723 62,039
Total revenue oL 1,779,646 — 2,168,056 498,285
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b)

Non-current assets

The non-current asset information is based on
the location of assets and excludes financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s non-current assets as at the end of the

reporting period by geographical location:

5. EBE@H - WARIEER#E)

5.2 REQWER(E)
HEEHF(E)
(b) HERBEE

FRDEEZENTIRIZEE
PIEMETE  AETEFEEmT
A RBERIREE °

TSR M B R R AR [ A
HZAREEIERBEEDHT

2011
—T——%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong BB 391,775 437,726
Mainland China RRE AP 148,275 136,256
Asia — Others g — HAh 856 537
540,906 574,519

Information about major customers

During each of the years ended 31st March 2012 and

2011, there was no single customer that contributed

10% or more of the Group’s revenue for these years.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6.

REFBESEXERB 2 HMBRARK

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net from REEREFELCEER 2 EMmUA R
continuing operations is as follows: RN ¢
2011
—T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Net changes in fair value of biological ~£¥EERA A EEEFHE
assets 2,031 2,127
Gross rental income He W ABE 288 204
Net foreign exchange gains HNBE Uy 2 ) F 7R 2,043 35,249
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESHEE Y W
financial assets 1,153 876
Write-back of impairment of trade E 5 EWGRIE R E R ]
receivables 1,049 —
Government grants* BB~ 2,820 761
Others HAtb 115 139
9,499 39,356

The Group received government grants for subsidies for
finance costs and for subsidies for addition of machinery and
equipment. The government grants represented subsidies for
finance costs recognised as other income when conditions of
these government grants were fulfilled. The government grants
received in respect of addition to machinery and equipment
were recognised as deferred income and released to other
income over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants as at 31st March 2012.

REBRTBEMEDRRERBERREE
B ER IR T i BY » IS BNIE B R 75 &
FAE B A 5% S5 U # B 2 16 1 2 AR B TE AR S
HA WA o 55 BER B 25 MR AT IRE Z
B B R IR A - N B REEZ
FEEIAEAFHRNEREEMPA - R=F
——F=ZRA=+—R8 " UEEBZSHHZ
RERK IR ARIR o
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRETBHANER,(F5E)
AR R B BRSBTS B AR
Il (BR)EMBRGTA) THIEE

2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——fF

The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing

operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FHET FET

Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 1,477,146 1,837,315
Write-down of inventories to net 17 &MU = r] #35 FE -

realisable value, net R 13,985 1,296
Net foreign exchange gains P 5 W s 58 (6,877) (36,421)
Depreciation of property, plant %% » E RRETE

and equipment 26,332 25,872
Depreciation of investment KEMERE

properties 16 102 77
Amortisation of intangible B EHE

assets” 1,484 2,613
Amortisation of leasehold land  &&HEBE N2 HE T

under operating leases and 3 {5 R R 5K

land use rights 17 425 352
Employment costs ERAA 8 120,754 107,128
Operating lease rental of rented FEWEZKEHERS

premises 45,357 47,611
Impairment/(write-back of 2 5 FE WK IE K H A FE Ui

impairment) of trade and FIER(E, (B EIRIE )

other receivables, net* FEE* 8,117 (1,001)
Provision for impairment of B EERERE

intangible assets* 18 2,112 —
Write-off of intangible assets* BB S 18 1,028 —
Provision for impairment Y - BB MR E R

of property, plant and

equipment* 15 40,580 —
Provision for onerous contracts* Eji8& AR * 32 38,034 —
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEZ

plant and equipment &8 848 3,927
Gain on disposal of available- LEAHEESRHEEY

for-sale financial assets Wz (1,153) (876)
Auditors’ remuneration SN & 2,668 2,624
Fair value losses/(gains) ESBRT A AREEE

on derivative financial S (zR)

instruments 1,032 (1,184)
* The amortisation of intangible assets, impairment or write- * ALY - B 5 FE NS IE K E it fE U R

back of impairment of trade and other receivables, provision EREXBEERE EFESERYYE B
KRR ERERENRERENBED T AL

SRBERZ[—BRTEER] -

for impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment, and provision for onerous contracts are included
in “General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated

income statement.
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

An analysis of employment costs including the emoluments

of the directors and the five highest paid individuals from

continuing operations is as follows:

BARA
REFBELEEBZERAKA (BEESEMH
ERABRERHFALZHM) DT

2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Directors’ fees E-Yokn 2,020 1,838
Salaries, wages, allowances and e TERER

bonuses 113,516 100,904

Consultancy fee ok 912 228

Retirement benefits — defined RIKREF
contribution scheme — REHKETE 4,306 4,158
120,754 107,128

()

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the Group (the employer) and each of its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The monthly contribution of each of the employer
and employees is subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per

employee and any further contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-operated
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The employees contribute fixed percentages of their
basic salaries as required by the local authorities
while the Group contributes further amount as required
by the local authorities. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond these contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the

entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

(a)

AEBEEDRHEAEEREEESH -]
HBYIZTABEZAHEATRS
E((REesE D) ZtElA
—IBAEHRKE - BERESE
g AEE(EE)REEESESE
AiZEEBBEBA(EER BB AT
M ATEL T ENES]) 2 5% mEt El1E
EER - BruEEREEZEAHE
KPR A 1,000 7T + i EBEIMER
TIEBERE °

R Az BRI REG  AEE
RETFBERNMEBRBEREZE
RETEIHR - BRI EBERTE
ZEAXAHEEEBDLER  MA
SEZZMTHARTE BN
WK - BRAFHFKIN AEERE
X AEA BB R KRS TR KRR R
ZEE - ZFEREMRNTEA
BERARKERESXNZEMEKRSE -
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. ERRA&E)
EEMS

BE_T——F=—A=+—HILHF
EREZZHMEINNT

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st March 2012 is set out below:

Employer’s
contribution

Consultancy to retirement

121

Salaries fee scheme
RIRHEZ
e EEHX
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Géran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm &4 240 1,212 - 12 1,464
Mr. John Saliling John Saliling £ 4" 110 745 418 6 1,279
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota 7t & 240 - - - 240
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai shiEEs " 110 - - - 110
Mr. Jason Matthew Brown Jason Matthew Brown 74 240 - - - 240
Mr. James Tsiolis James Tsiolis &4 240 - - - 240
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen SREEE 260 - - - 260
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching ERIEfAE 280 - - - 280
Mr. Yu Wang Tak REEEE 300 - - - 300
2,020 1,957 418 18 4,413
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. EAMAX#®)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEME(E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended HE-_T——F=A=+—HL#F
31st March 2011 is set out below: EXEFZHFMEHIIAOT :
Employer's
contribution
Consultancy ~ to retirement
Fees Salaries fee scheme Total
RifarEl
ik e BRE EEEH ek
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TAT TET TET
Executive directors WTEE
Mr. Goran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm %4 192 1,212 — 12 1,416
Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam @ ApErs" 94 481 = 6 581
Mr. John Saliling © John Saliling 564 192 2310 208 12 2,742
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota 724 192 - - - 192
Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai BEHELE"Y 46 — — — 46
Mr. Henry Kim Cho © Henry Kim Cho 24" - - - - -
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai )bt 192 - - — 192
Mr. Jason Matthew Brown ) Jason Matthew Brown %4 9% — — — 98
Mr. James Tsiolis ) James Tsiolis 7" 64 - - - 64
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen SRERE 192 - — — 192
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching ERELAE 192 — — — 192
Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping il BATREY 192 = = = 192
Mr. Yu Wang Tak REBEE 192 — — — 192
1,838 4,003 228 30 6,099
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8.

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Except for the year ended 31st March 2011, where

each of Mr. Henry Kim Cho and Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok

Tai, non-executive directors of the Company, waived

director's fees amounting to HK$52,000, there was no

other arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the years
ended 31st March 2012 and 2011.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

Pursuant to a consultancy agreement entered into
between the Group and Pharos Partners, a company
owned by Mr. John Saliling, a consultancy fee of
HK$418,000 was paid to Pharos Partners during the
period from 1st April 2011 to 15th September 2011 when
Mr. John Saliling acted as a director of the Company
(year ended 31st March 2011: HK$228,000). On 15th
September 2011, Mr. John Saliling retired as an executive
director, only a portion of his emolument during that year
has been included as directors’ emolument above. Given
Mr. John Saliling is considered one of the five highest
paid individuals for the year ended 31st March 2012, his
full year's emoluments including the above portion have

been included in note 8(c) to the financial statements.

Retired on 15th September 2011
Retired on 27th September 2010
Resigned on 4th October 2010
Retired on 8th July 2010

Elected on 27th September 2010
Elected on 1st December 2010

Resigned on 1st April 2011
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B AR A (42)

(b)

EEME(E)

REzE—FT——F=H=+—HL
FEHN - ARTZIEMITESE Henry
Kim Cho %t 4 & BBl Z= 5 £ & B
EL2000B T2 ESTHE I R
BE-_E——ER-_FT——%=H
=T—HILEFE: BEEFREE
fh ZBEME KR EREEAME -

® RIEAEEE John Saliling 4
B2 A7 Pharos Partners %5 2B
Bz "= ——FmNA—HBE=
Z——% A A+ FHJohn Saliling
S EPEE A A B E F HIfH [ Pharos
Partners X {1 418,000 %8 T 2 B &
(BE=-T——=A=+—HAL*F
€ :228,0008TL) R-_FE——%F
N A+ HEHB ' John Saliling 5t £ iR
EHITES - FREFEMS 2 —3F
DEHALREZHE - BE=-T—=
F=A=+—HIFE ' @R John
Saliling t £ WBERAEREHTAL
Z2— HMEHEZEME(BIELX
)t AR SRR S(C) °

®  RZF-—FANATEARE
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8.

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

8.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include 2 (2011:

2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. The emoluments of Mr. John

Saliling disclosed in note 8(b) only included the portion

of his emoluments during the year when he held the

directorship position. The emoluments payable to the

five highest paid individuals during the year are as

follows:

2% NE D)
(c) BEBBEHFAL

AEBRFEAMEESZAE A
TERERE(ZTE——F: WA)
EE HMEERLEXERZH
T AR = BR o B 5E8(b) AT # & John
Saliling 47 & EBEFAFIE
FEFZHEz—HD - FARA
EaHATzBMEmT

2011

—E——%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and bonuses e EBLRIEA 10,507 8,150
Employer’s contribution to retirement RINGHEI 2 B E B

scheme 56 60

10,563 8,210

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell

within the following bands:

TEEsHFALTHSETIES®
B

2011

—E——%F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A& A&

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T E 1,500,000 7T 1 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BT E 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T = 2,500,0008 7T 2 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T = 3,000,00078 7T 1 1
5 5
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31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

9. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9. MBUARER
An analysis of finance income and costs from continuing REFBELEEB 2V BRARERAD N
operations is as follows: R
2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Finance income: R A :
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFBHA 7,762 5,568
Net foreign exchange gains on A& E B 71N U 2 5 R
financing activities 7,571 —
15,333 5,568
Finance costs: MKEHR :
Interest on bank loans RITERZFE 19,600 11,744
Interest on finance lease obligations RMEREREZFE 2 4
Net foreign exchange gains on BB S BN Y a R
financing activities — (1,172)
19,602 10,576
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for

the year.

Subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities established in
Mainland China are subject to the Mainland China enterprise
income tax at the standard rate of 25% (2011: 25%). Certain
of these entities in Mainland China have been granted a five-
year transitional period with a progressive tax rate from 15%
to 25% from 1st January 2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

The amounts of income tax credit/(expense) recorded in the

consolidated income statement from continuing operations

10.

8B < i

RARER RN ERERBEE T
— N o BB EHE AT ERR S
FIRFE16.5% (ZF——4F : 16.5%) &t

s
o

b

AR B R A S 2 BT B A B R R AR E
BBAR25% (=T ——4 : 25%) 2 1R %R
MR E AN ERMER - 5 THEP
BAAREREAFRES  HEXg=2%
ENF—HA—BH15% EELE25% °

TEHNE S KRB AU AN ) 5 F 2 BEIE TD
FLEFE A b A B RR T M IR AR R B A & P
ERAEBRATERREAE

THENGEABRBERTZREFALEERD
ZERBAR, () 28E

represent:
2011
T ——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current taxation B HRIE
Hong Kong profits tax EBMEH
— current year — REE (324) (632)
— overprovision in prior years — BEHFE 2 BEEE — 3
Mainland China enterprise income tax R B i 1B ZE TS
— current year — REE (1,799) (3,252)
— overprovision/(underprovision) in — BABFEZBEEE
prior years (BETR) 58 (879)
Overseas taxation BINRIE
— current year — REE (79) 23
— overprovision in prior years — BEHFE B 78 =
Deferred taxation RIET IR (15,293) (2,095)
(17,359) (6,832)
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31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10.

The amount of tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income
tax from continuing operations differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

e HE)

REBMBEREEB L BRERANEH
(BR)ZHESEERREANGA TS
SEBHRL(BR) 2 MR RHE 2 B

applicable to the profit/(loss) of the consolidated entities as

SRIERNT ¢

follows:
2011
—T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax from REFFEICE SRS 2 RS FLAT
continuing operations wm AL (E51E) (223,371) 14,949
Tax credit/(expense) calculated at ZEARNEBREER SR,
the average domestic tax rates (B2 FHEMRETE 2
applicable to profits/(losses) in the FiIEgEm ()
respective jurisdictions 40,446 (4,377)
Tax effect of: MBTE
— income not subject to tax — AR WA 2,430 8,464
— expenses not deductible for tax — PAIF 2 X H (25,964) (8,904)
— lower tax rates for specific — BFEEMNSM T HEAE K2
provinces or enacted by local BIRF X
authorities 162 2,399
— overprovision/(underprovision) in — BERFEZBBERE
prior years (BBETR) 136 (876)
— tax losses not recognised — RERZBIEEE (14,728) (2,753)
— reduction of tax loss previously — SLRTER 2 RIBEER D
recognised (19,068) —
— others — Hfth (773) (785)
Tax expense R H (17,359) (6,832)

For the year ended 31st March 2012, the weighted average

RBE-T——H=B=+—AIFE

applicable tax rate was 18.1% (2011: 29.3%). The change in
weighted average applicable tax rate is caused by a change
in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries and jointly-

controlled entities in the respective jurisdictions.
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

11.

12.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31st March 2012 includes a loss
of HK$85,064,000 (2011: HK$38,504,000) that has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 30th April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its entire 33.74% shareholding in TK Chemical
Corporation (“TKC”), which is incorporated in the Republic of
Korea (the “Transaction”). TKC is principally engaged in the
business of manufacturing and sale of (i) polyester fiber; (ii)
spandex; and (iii) PET resin, which are materials widely used
in the manufacturing of synthetic fabrics, yarns and plastic
bottles. The Transaction provided a good opportunity for
the Group to realise the value that had been created at TKC
since the Group acquired it in June 2008. The Transaction
also provided certainty and acceleration with respect to the
Group’s exit and return, as compared to the other alternatives
such as an initial public offering of TKC. The disposal of TKC
was completed on 13th July 2010.

After the disposal of TKC, the Group ceased its chemical
operation, a reportable operating segment, and thus the
chemical operation undertaken by TKC was classified as a
discontinued operation upon signing of the agreement for the

Transaction.

11.

12.

ARAEEAREER

HE-_ZZ——_F=ZA=+—HLFE
ZAQNBBREEEGEEBEREREER
85,064,000 7 7t( ==& ——4 : 38,504,000
BIT)  ERARRBHBRE NG o

ERIEEEER

M-ZE—FEMA=1+0H  NEBEFLW
e ONHEERERBERFMK Y 2TK
Chemical Corporation([TKC]) Z & &
33.74% R (TR 5 1) - TKCE Z R H (i)
BG4 ¢ (i) B4 - R (i) PET g
REREEET - WEME ARES K E
HwoWRBEBZERDE R RNEER
BHEEHER =TT /)\F /5 AU TKC LA
R TKC AlliE 2 BER M — 8 R 72 H# - 48
LEEM B RIMTKC HRAREE - RSN
HAEEZRE REREL B E R NFEE
T HETKCR=ZE—ZFLA+=H%
;ﬁz °

RHEETKCE  AERBERIEE(CBER
(AT EDIR) - MTIKCREE 2 LB
BRRXZWHERTRD B RO ILRES
7% o
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. BRIEREERK &)
The results of TKC’s operation in 2011 (up to the date of T —F(EHERH)ZTKCEEEE
disposal) are presented below: ZFIAT ¢
2011
T
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 498,285
Expenses i (461,105)
Finance costs M5 & H (3,109)
Profit from the discontinued operation BRI R 2 m A 34,071
Provision for remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell ~ EHFEE R A BRI E KA 2 B (12,200)
Profit before income tax from the discontinued operation BRI EBRETE B ATR A 21,871
Income tax expense RS fist (7,671)
Profit for the year from the discontinued operation FRERILEEER 2w F 14,200
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The net cash flows generated by TKC (up to the date of

disposal) are as follows:

12. ERLEREXK@)

T

TKC(ZEHERMELAZFREREN

2011
—T——%F
HK$'000
FET
Operating activities KR SERE 22,138
Investing activities REEE (5,593)
Financing activities BEEH (2,982)
Net cash inflow FEEMA 13,563
2011
—T——%F

Earnings per share from the discontinued operation: FIRAEF - REBRIELEER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) R REEE CENL) 0.10

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from

the discontinued operation are based on:

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company

from the discontinued operation (HK$)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year, used in the basic and diluted earnings

per share calculation (note 14)

AHERIKEXBEREARE TR

TR
2011
—ET——%F
AAEE BRI EMERIE
BTG 2w B T) 14,200,000

AEEREARESRN 2
FAERITERBZ IntE

FIE(HaE 14) 13,596,349,295
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13. DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2011: Nil). The
directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31st March 2012. For the year ended 31st
March 2011, a special dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary
share (amounting to HK$543,871,000 in total) was paid.

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the Group’s profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

2012
—E-CE

Continuing  Discontinued

operations operation
SESERE CRLSERE

Profit(loss) attributable to shareholders ~ AARIREEREH /
of the Company (HK8'000) (Bi)(F4r) (241,061)

13.

14.

[ g=\

FRATERNPHRE(ZZ ——F:
)  EEWTERREBE_T——F
ZA=ZT—HIEFEZERMRBRE < &
E-T——HF=A=+—HIEE BX
R ERAR 480U (5 #£543,871,0007%8
T) Z BRI, -

BRER(FHR)
SREXRF(BHA)

FRERERN,(EE) TR R RKRE
HAEE G, (BRBUAZFERNE
BITE BB INETFOHETHE -

2011
i 2
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
REBSER BRILBEER 2E
(241,061) 7,692 14,200 21892

Weighted average number of ordinary BRI AR MEFHH

shares in issue 13,543,039,798  13,543,039,798  13,543,039,798 | 13,596,349,295  13,596,349,295  13,596,349,295
Basic earings/(loss) per share AARRREESHRER

attributable to sharefolders of the BRI/ (BR)(()

Company (HK cents) (1.78) - (1.78) 0.06 0.10 0.16
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SRBERAN(BHR)

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss)
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31st March
2012 and 2011 as the Group did not have any potential
diluted ordinary shares during the years ended 31st March
2012 and 2011.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. M1% - REKRME

Group AEE
Furniture, Plant and
Leasehold fixtures machinery and
Freehold [and and Leasehold and office Motor ~ demonstration  Construction
[and buildings  improvements equipment vehicles machinery  in progress Total
Bl %EN BRERES
KARELE REINRER RENREE  RMOERG fE  URTEER kRIR 45
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
7AT AT FAT AT FAT FAT FAT 7AT
At 1st April 2010; W-T-FERA-R:
Cost f ¢ﬁ 129322 196,687 66,368 33533 5,508 384,745 35,905 852,068
Accumulated depreciation and ZHfERAE

impairment - (14,550) (13,059) (15,629) (2573) (96,616) - (142.421)

Net book amount FEAE 29,322 182137 53,309 17904 2,93 268,129 35,905 709,641
Year ended 31st March 2011 BETF—FZR=1-ALER

Opening net book amount EREE 29,322 182137 53,309 17904 2,93 268,129 35,905 709,641

Additions RE = - 8,387 5491 504 1,669 25,259 41316

Disposs e - 0) (3.465) (199) M (3,606 - (7576)

Disposal of ajointly-controlled entty  HERARHER
(10te %) (K:3%) (19851)  (152599) (16,284 (1279 (%) [210359) (0349 (10500)
Depreciation i = (213) (8,690) (4264) (4%0) (21484) - (37.081)
Transfer fo iventories SRohE - - - = = (13.857) = (13.857)
Other transfers EfEg = 24610 = — - = (24.610) -
Exchange realignment BT (9371) (10908) (1,161) 199 ] (12,643) 2 (33,569)
Closing net book amount FREDEE - H 171 33,09 175% 2,883 21847 %82 148,364
At 81t March 2011 and RZB——F=R=1-Ak

15t Aprl 2011: “3-ERA-R:

Cost AR - 47416 49703 36,203 5,967 46,063 2,829 211,381

Accumulated depreciation and ZiTERNE

impaiment - (6.45) (16,07) (18,665) (3,084 (18,416 - (63017)

Net book amount T = a.1n 33,0% 17538 2,683 2841 2,829 148,364
Year ended 31t March 2012 BECR-CEZRA=T-ALER

Opening net book amount HIEDEE - Hin 33,096 17,538 2883 2,847 25,829 148,364

Additions HE - an 4212 3m 19 9,234 17218 35,201

Disposes it - - (64) (13) (140) 0 - (o18)

Depreciaion & - (2521) (8.46) (457 (198) (0.89%5) - (26,332)

Impiment (1ol 5.2) WEW52) - - (26,349) (5,184 - (0,087 - (40,580)

Transfer from inventories E:E T - - - - - 537 - 597

Transfer to investment propertes SRERENZ (Wit 16)

(e 16 - (156 - - - - - (456
Other ransfers HfedE - 14237 - 5615 % 8,151 (26,0%) -
Exchange realignment EiAE - 1,683 7 346 97 662 943 3,115
Closing net book amount EREmEE - 54,591 1913 16473 3,169 25,497 17954 119,597

At 31t March 2012: W-F-ZE=f=1-A:
Cost RAE - 63,428 52,83 45414 6,532 63,019 17,954 249,182
Accumulated depreciafion and ZiiTERNE

inpaiment - (6837 (50,922) (28.941) (336) (37522) - (195

Net book amount FEsE - 54,591 1,913 16,473 3,169 25,497 17,954 119,597
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31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Group (continued)

The Group’s plant and machinery and demonstration
machinery held under finance leases as at 31st March 2011
and 2012 were fully depreciated.

The Group’s leasehold land included in property, plant and
equipment with a net book amount of HK$5,024,000 (2011:
HK$5,176,000) as at 31st March 2012 is situated in Hong

Kong and is held under a medium-term lease.

Certain property, plant and equipment are pledged as
securities for the Group’s banking facilities. Details are set out

in note 38 to the financial statements.

15.

M BMERREE)
AEW(E)

AEBREREHERE ZHE KR
RRERER T ——FR-ZF—ZF=
A=t—HEZ2EHE -

AREEFAZZE—=—F=ZA=1+—8Y
¥ BFERFHEREERS024,0008 7T
(ZZ——4%:5,176,000/8 L) 2 E +
AT RS - WIRFHALNES -
ETWE - BEREEEEFESEAEE
RITEE 2 FBR - FBHRB B IRETM T
38 e

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWHE
Group
REME
2012 2011
—E——F %
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
23 FET FET
At beginning of year: F9) -
Cost KAE 2,734 2,650
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE (562) (467)
Net book amount REFE 2,172 2,183
Opening net book amount FHREFE 2,172 2,183
Transfer from property, EHEAYE BF
plant and equipment B 15 456 —
Depreciation e (102) (77)
Exchange realignment TE 5 A% 71 66
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 2,597 2,172
At end of year: FE
Cost BAE 3,459 2,734
Accumulated depreciation Ritine (862) (562)
Net book amount REFE 2,597 2,172
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held under the

following lease terms as at 31st March 2012:

16.

REM=E @)

RZZBE—Z—F=A=+—0  FA5Ez%&
BEMEZTIIHEEREA

HK$’000
FET

In Mainland China, held under: RABE AU - R TFIEAFE
Long term leases REITHA 420
Medium term leases R ERFE 49 2,177
2,597

The gross rental income received and receivable by the
Group and the direct expenses in respect of these investment

properties are summarised as follows:

AEBERZEREMECWER R E Y 2
SRABBAREE LRI T

Group
REE
2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross rental income HeWAERE 243 168
Direct expenses HELH (84) (60)
159 108

The Group’s investment properties are held for rental

purposes under operating leases.

One of the investment properties is pledged as security for
the Group’s banking facilities. Details are set out in note 38 to

the financial statements.

AEBZREMEAUREHERE - U
fEHA -

Hh—HREMECERERARERTT
BB 2R - FHIEHN P BRKRMELSS -
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17. LEASEHOLD LAND UNDER OPERATING
LEASES AND LAND USE RIGHTS

17.

REHERTcHEL R T HME
P

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——5F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 18,098 15,846
Additions NE — 1,961
Amortisation G (425) (352)
Exchange realignment HE 5 R B 713 643
Closing net book amount FRERMEFE 18,386 18,098
Less: Current portion B mENE D (392) (377)
Non-current portion JERENE 17,994 17,721

The Group’s leasehold land under operating leases and land
use rights are situated in Mainland China and Macau and held

under medium lease terms.

Certain leasehold land under operating leases and land
use rights are pledged as security for the Group’s banking
facilities. Details are set out in note 38 to the financial

statements.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Group AEE
Development
Customer Technology  Distribution  rights and
Goodwill ~relationships  Trademarks knowhow  agreements  franchise fees Software Others Total
BREA
fig EFEA i1 LT AEE  GTEER 2 i it
HK$000 HKS 1000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
7AT AT 7AT 7AT 7AT AT FAT 7AT 7AT
At Tt Al 2010 R-E-TEMA-B:
Cost AR 470,033 86,261 32,776 34,29 16,750 4,868 2619 M 647,713
Accumulated amortisafionand ~ 3+ S5
impairment - (31,688) (6,630) (8,803) (16,750) (872) (833) (88) (65,664)
Net book amount EARA 470,033 54573 26,146 25,492 - 3,996 1,786 23 582,049
Yearended 3istMarch 2011 EE=F——E=A=T-HLER
Opening net book amount EEATE 470,033 54,573 26,146 2,492 - 3,996 1,786 23 582,049
Additions HE - - - - - 249 - - 219
Amortisation B - (2,084) (1479) (1221) - (498) (116) 9 (5,407)
Wite-of ] - - - - - (170) - - (170)
Disposal of a oinly-contioled i EAFHIEE
enty @770 deE) (125 (2479 - - (1546) — (B
Exchange realignment EifE - (3:833) (997) (1793) = = (124) = (6,747)
Closing net book amount ERETE 380,263 - 11,002 - - 3577 - 14 394 946
At 31t March 2011 and N-F--%=A=1-BR
st Aprl 2011; Z3—-ERA-R:
Cost HAE 38063 5410 15,600 - 16,750 4947 - 1 443081
Acoumulated amortisationand ~ 23+ &5
inpeiment - B0 (459) — ) (13n) - o (%)
Net book amount Y 380,263 - 11,002 - - 3977 - 14 394,946
Yearended SistMarch 2012 BE-F-—E=R=1-RL5E
Qpening net book amount TSR 380,263 - 11,092 - - 357 - 1 304,946
Amortsation £ - - (1,039) - - 1) - 8 (1484)
Impaiment (note 5.2) WEWs2) - - - - - (2112) - - 211
Wrte-off (note 5.2) HEms2) - - - - - (1,028) - - (1,028)
Closing net book amount ERETE 380,263 - 10,083 - - - - § 390,322
At 31st March 2012: RE-8=R=1-R:
Cost AR 380,263 2,40 15,600 - 16,750 2,992 - 111 441,126
Accumulated amortisafionand ~ 3+ S5
impaiment - By () - ) ) - 15 (080
Net book amount i 380,263 - 10,053 - - - - 6 390,322
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18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to operating segments. A segment-level

summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

18.

BEEEM®)
BERERNH

FBEDREEENHEIREANEERCE
HB - pHEEE EEOREMEZSM
™

2011
%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Hi-tech distribution and services = R EE fn ) 88 R AR 7% 55 7%
operation 373,692 373,692
Fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products 8%} -« &l RKEE R EKE
operation 6,571 6,571
380,263 380,263

Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-

generating unit

The recoverable amount of the hi-tech distribution and
services operation cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 11% (2011: 11%). Due
to the uncertainty, no growth rate was used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the hi-tech distribution and services operation

cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period.

Fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products operation cash-

generating unit

The recoverable amount of the fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic
products operation cash-generating unit is determined
based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11% (2011: 11%).
Similar to the hi-tech distribution and services operation,
no growth rate was used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products operation cash-

generating unit beyond the five-year period.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18. B EE#)

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued) BmERERRE)

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculations BHE-ZT——FR-F—F=HA=1—
of the hi-tech distribution and services operation and the HIEFE 2R ERD HRRBE S &
fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products operation cash- M ABEMKEERFEFRCEESMN
generating units for the years ended 31st March 2012 and ZEREBEEFEFAZERR - ATARE
2011. The following describes each key assumption on which HEAETHERENRAMEL ZBRER
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake SRAFMKE 2 SEEERR ¢

impairment testing of goodwill:

Distribution rights — The continuance of the distribution rights DiEE — ERRRRESRERERD HE
for the hi-tech distribution operation in the foreseeable future HZ RS E - BBBEEAEEINK A
would not need any additional costs or investment. A o

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the FEEEMNE — AUETBEEMNEER
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on DIRBEATREAKEEEMSERESE °

past performance and management’s expectations for market

development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are pre-tax and BRI E — FTERA 2 A6 R A AT R A
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units. BRABA 2 BN E R
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RMB AT 2=
In the Company’s statement of financial position, details of RARB 2 MBIRARA - RIFE AT 2
interests in subsidiaries are as follows: Em IR
Company
RAF
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG - RAAE — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries, included NG I N
in non-current assets (note 40(c)) EMBEE(Mfat40(c)) 891,429 846,361
891,429 846,361
Impairment VERIE] (235,360) (250,000)
656,069 596,361
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st

March 2012:

Name

1

American Tec Company
Limited
ERETREERAR

American Tec Electronic
India Private Limited*

NAS American Tec
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (ii)*

JbE TR (BRM)
BRAR (i)

North Asia Strategic (HK)
Limited (i)
IR (EE)ERAR ()

Perfect Combo Limited
RIREBRAT

Place of incorporation or
establishment/operation
MR LRRL

Hong Kong

BE

India

g

People’s Republic of China
(“PRC")/Mainland China

HEAREME
(THhEE ),/ El A

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

&

Principal activities

TRER

Trading of SMT equipment and
investment holding
SMTREBE 5 RIREER

Provision of machinery
installation, training,
business promotion, repair
and maintenance services

RftgERE  #1l-

R - BERRERS

Trading of electronic products,
machinery and spare parts
and provision of repair and
installation services

BTER  HBREBHEIUR

REEE R ZERE

Provision of management
services and investment
holding

RAER RS LIREER

Operation of quick service
restaurants in Hong Kong
under Burger King brand

TEAENERT (Burger King)
mERERELE

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA

19. RMIBAR 2 ®)

NTIRR_E—ZF=A=+—HBEXEW
REZHBE -

Particulars

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRITRAE/
HMEARFE

60,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

60,000,000 f%

SREE BT ERR

1,879,000 ordinary shares
of INR10 each
1,879,000 f%
BREMB10EL . EBk

US$1,000,000
1,000,000 % 7T

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1REE BT SBR

145,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

145,000,000 B & IRE(E
1T EER

Percentage of
equity interest
held by

the Group
KRB
REABZE AL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19. RIIB AR 2 (&)

Particulars Percentage of
of issued equity interest
Place of incorporation or share capital/ held by
Name establishment/operation Principal activities registered capital the Group
A S L B BRTRE/ AEBE
a2 mEn TEXH HEMERFE RABZEEAL
Tianjin American Tec PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic products US$200,000 100%
Trading Company RE /R and spare parts 200,000 7T
Limited (ii)* ETEMRTIHES
RERBETERE S
BRAE (i)
FYlfmBREREE TR PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic products, RMB3,000,000 100%
BB (i) R/ E A machinery and spare parts AE#3,000,00070
and provision of repair and
installation services
EfEM  BERZHHEEIUR
REEERTERS
ST EESEFRECRIN) PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic products, US$150,490 100%
BRAR (ii)* B/ E R machinery and spare parts 150,490 £ 7T
and provision of repair and
installation services
BEfEm  BERTHHEI AR
REBERZE R
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FREVNEERBETEFEAEEBARFE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results XENERAEBEEFEETELD ZA
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets NEIMB AR - EERE - BEMHKBEA
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in AlZFBIIHEBN TR -
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
Notes: Hiat -
(i) Shares of this company are held directly by the Company. (i) ZARZBRNBEARNAREERH - Etb AR

Shares of the other companies are held indirectly.

(i) These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in the (ii)
PRC to operate for up to 30 years until 2023 to 2039.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member *
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

ZBEMTIEERE ©

IETDRPBEKZZIINEBERSE  KEH
B =tFEE-_T_=FH_FT=NF -

W E BB L KGR EBI AL KGR
EEBEHBKR MR ERARER -
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

20.

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Group subscribed for 100,000,000 non-redeemable
convertible preferred shares of Coland Group Limited
(“Coland”).

ordinary shares, the Group will have a 40% equity interest

Upon full conversion of the preferred shares to

in Coland. In accordance with an agreement between the
Group and the other joint venturer, all matters relating to
Coland require joint approval by both parties. Therefore,
Coland has been accounted for as a jointly-controlled entity.
Coland is principally engaged in the refining and sale of fish
oil, processing and sale of fishmeal, manufacture and sale of
aquatic feed products, aquaculture, and processing and sale

of aquatic products.

In addition, the Group had acquired 2,699,347 preference
shares of TKC. The preferred shares were participating,
cumulative and voting shares, which were entitled to receive
a minimum cash dividend at 15% of par value annually.
In accordance with a shareholders’ agreement, all major
financial and operational matters should be jointly approved
by the Group and other venture parties. Therefore, TKC
had been accounted for as a jointly-controlled entity. TKC
was principally engaged in the business of manufacturing
polyester fiber, spandex and PET resin. TKC has been

disposed of in the prior year (note 12).

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA

20.

HEZFHEE

AEECRBEREEARABF(HED
2 100,000,000 A& A~ B] f& =] AT 2 A% 8 5 A
- REELBREERASEBREK A&
B SR 40% AR - REAEH
HR—RfrtXTYZHE  AHEEREZ
—YIEERKATHETT KFALE - Bt -
BREEH A HARZEHER - 2EEE
RERBBRIEE AN TREE -
KERMMERBERHEE  KERENAR
IREEmMNIRIFEE -

Eoh - AEBE WREETKC 2,699,347 B (&
LR ZEBERARDE  ZBRREEERE
R BETFIEEEZ 15% WRKIE
BeRE - BERERZ - —IERHE
REBEHAKANERBREME ST LR
o o Htt - TKC B &R — [ 2R 2
FRE -TKCEENEF Mg - Blrgs
R PETHIRERIEXT - AEBEREFH
B TKC (fffFE12) °
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20. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 20. HEEHEB &)

LA &8I AEE D BB S EEZ 40% A
N TKC 2 33.74% B EH A & A Rk A &
S BRFAGRE M BARRR RERE B

in the consolidated statement of financial position and the xK:

The following amounts represent the Group’s 40% share
and 33.74% share of assets and liabilities, and revenue

and expenses of Coland and TKC, respectively, included

consolidated income statement:

TKC Coland
=)

2011 2011
& 2
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE — 144,088 135,540
Current assets MEEE — 453,502 443,769
— 597,590 579,309

LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRHER — (12,523) (14,108)
Current liabilities mEEE = (415,379) (356,353)
- (427,902) (370,461)
Net assets BEFE - 169,688 208,848
Revenue WA 498,285 744,236 465,187
Expenses S (464,214) (781,691) (435,017)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREEHANER/ (B8) 34,071 (37,455) 30,170
Income tax credit/(expense) FIEBiER /(i) (7.671) 6,446 (5,862)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF/(EE) 26,400 (31,009) 24,308
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20. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

As at 31st March 2012, the Group's share of the jointly-
controlled entities own capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment: L E NG
Contracted but not provided for EHFOIEE R

20.

HEEGIEEE)

R_F——F=A=+—H ~&EHL
RERAREEEH BB S REEZERN
AYENT

2011
—T——%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET F&T
11,254 10,772

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the jointly-

controlled entities as at 31st March 2012.

The following is a list of the principal jointly-controlled entities,
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group as at 31st March 2012. To give details
of other jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation or

Name establishment/operation Principal activities
EMALH AR Y,

L BEE TEEK

Coland Group Limited Bermuda/Hong Kong Investment holding

BESEERAR BRE/ BB REER

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA

RZZE——F=A=+—H  #HEARAL
RiEHIEE 2 HAEE -

UTRAR_F——F=A=+t—BZxE
HRE %IE*‘EESZ%% EERRREHA
?'L%IJZE: SE ?/Ezls’ilzlxiﬁiiiﬂﬂ%
KARBEEEFELIZHD - EERR
175 EL A 3[R 151 B B8 #I‘*ﬁ\JﬁA B

fEBERILE

Percentage of

Particulars of equity interest
issued share capital/ indirectly held
registered capital by the Group
BORE/  AEBEEEASR
AMERFE AEZEIML

150,000,000 ordinary shares 40%
of HK$0.1 each and
100,000,000 non-redeemable
convertible preferred shares
of HK$0.1 each
150,000,000 &A%
EE0 BT ERRR
100,000,000 A &A%
EfE0.1Em 2 g
A B i
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20.

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 20.

Name

&%

Coland Holdings Company
Limited

BREERNERAT]

Coland Shipping Limited
EREMBERAR

Fujian Coland Bioscience and
Technology Co., Ltd. (ii)*
BEREEEMRRARAR (i)

Fujian Coland Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. (iy*
BEREEZERAR ()

Fujian Coland Logistics Co.,
Ltd. (i)*
BEREIRERAR ()

Fujian Coland Marine
Bioengineering Co., Ltd. (i)*

BERESTENIRE
BRAR ()

Place of incorporation or
establishment/operation

R AR A L
KA

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

BB

PRC/Mainland China
HE/ R

PRC/Mainland China
RE /R E R

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R

PRC/Mainland China
RE /R E R

Principal activities

TREHR

Sourcing of fishmeal and
fish oil, and property and
investment holding

R R AR IRIE AR
MERERREER

Provision of shipping agency
services

REHBHIRRY

Refining of fish oil

BiRR

Processing of fishmeal,
refining of fish oil, trading
of processed fishmeal and

HEEHIEEE)

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
AMEARFE

5,000,000 shares

of HK$1 each
5,000,000 &A%
EfE1BTZiRH

10 shares of HK$1 each
10REREE BT
pdi 3

US$7,500,000
7,500,000 7T

RMB52,000,000
AR 52,000,0007¢

refined fish oil, property and

investment holding
BN - FBREH - TR

BEERERES  NER

BRBEER

Sale and supply of fishmeal,
and property and
investment holding

RMIHE REEARDZERE
LR EER

Manufacturing and sale of
fish oil
RUBEERHE

RMB42,000,000
AR 42,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR 50,000,000 7T

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held
by the Group
AEEEERER
AERAAL

40%

40%

40%

40%

40%

40%
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20.

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 20.

Name

&

Fujian Coland-Nosan Feed
Co., Ltd. (i)
BEREFEARAR )

Fuzhou China Seafoods
Company Limited (ii)*
BMNERKER R (i)

Fuzhou Economic Technical
Development Zone Coland
Feeds Co., Ltd. (ii)*

EMNFEZESEEH
BRAH (i)

TRMNHCEIKE R R A B (i)

BMTEEKEES
BIRZAR (i)

Ocean Resource Macao
Commercial Offshore
Limited*

RRFR R R
BRAR"

Wuhan Coland Aquatic
Products and Food
Co., Ltd. (i)

RESRKERM
BRDAR ()

Place of incorporation or
establishment/operation

R AL,
KA

PRC/Mainland China

GV

PRC/Mainland China
/R E R

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R E A

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B R

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R

Macau
P

PRC/Mainland China
B/ R B

Principal activities

TREH

Production and distribution of
feeds
FRHEER D

Fish farming and sale

EERHEER

Manufacturing and sale of
aquatic feeds

KERMEEERHEE

Abalone farming and sale
BERHEEHA

Sale of aquatic products
HEKEER

Sourcing of fishmeal and fish
oil, and property holding

B R BRI %
A

Purchase, processing, sale
and export of aquatic
products

KEEMPFE - T HER
O %7

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA

HEEGIEEE)

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
AMERFE

RMB20,000,000

AR 20,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,000 7T

US$2,500,000
2,500,000 % T

RMBS,000,000
AR 3,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AR 500,000 7T

MOP500,000
500,000 9%

US$10,100,000
10,100,000 % 7T

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held
by the Group
AEERERER
AEFEADL

24%

32%

40%

24%

40%

40%

40%
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20. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 20. HEEHEB &)

Particulars of

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of incorporation or issued share capital/ indirectly held
Name establishment/operation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
MR LS BRTRE/ AEEEEAFR
% R TEER AMERFEE rERBOL
Wuhan Coland Feed PRC/Mainland China Production and distribution of US$3,800,000 40%
Co., Ltd (i)* HE /R E A aquatic feeds 3,800,000 7T
REREMANAERAR () KEFRRMIRS 3
Notes: Hiat -
0) These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned (i) ZERAIRBPBEIEEZAMAINEEE
enterprises under PRC law. E
(i)  These companies are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures (i) ZHERAIREFBEEFMZPINEED
registered under PRC law. E 30
(ili)  These companies are registered as limited liability companies (i) ZEQAFMRBEREEEEMABRAF -

under PRC law.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member * WIEHBE BT RGBSk k&

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

BN =TS AT 2B AR < KB B RRIERX ©
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. IHHEHESREE
Group
REE
2011
—T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
At beginning of year F4] 2,109 3,008
Changes in fair value recognised in REMEEREERZ AL E

other comprehensive income & (443) 244
Disposals HE (1,823) (1,618)
Disposal of a jointly-controlled entity 6 2k [F 1R B 8E (M 36)

(note 36) — (2)
Exchange realignment ME 5 3 B 157 477
At end of year FR — 2,109
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREERETS

include the following: HE :

Listed equity securities — overseas EHRAES — FHN — 2,109

Available-for-sale financial assets as at 31st March 2011 were

denominated in Japanese Yen.

R-ZZE——F=A=+—H A#HE:

AEEARTEHE °

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22. HiERBEE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Rental and other deposits HekEMize 7,263 5,761
Deposits for acquisition of equipment  WERE 2 Z S 3,133 5,555
10,396 11,316

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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23.

24,

INVENTORIES 23. 78

Group

AEH
2012 2011
e —z——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R 174,378 170,466
Finished goods RUBR T 108,288 75,446
Consumables JHAE 3,272 2,226
285,938 248,138

Certain inventories are pledged as security for the Group’s

banking facilities. Details are set out in note 38 to the financial

statements.

ETHEETUERESANKERITREZ
PR - BN BERRMESS

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 24, Y BE
(a) A reconciliation of the carrying amount of biological HEYEE ZEEEEYERINT -
assets is as follows:
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of year F4) 8,499 —
Increases due to purchases PREBEE & 2380 4,973 7,904
Gain arising from changes in fair value 72 7 B & &) 8 & A
less costs to sell EHEZ W 2,031 2,127
Decreases due to sales HEEEZRD (6,680) (1,774)
Exchange realignment bE N AR 359 242
At end of year FR 9,182 8,499
Represented by: g -
Fishes RE 2,178 2,864
Abalones =t 7,004 5,635
9,182 8,499
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24. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Certain of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities are
engaged in the fish and abalone farming in Mainland
China.

Biological assets are measured on initial recognition
and at the end of the reporting period at their fair value
less costs to sell. The fair values less costs to sell of the
biological assets were valued on 31st March 2012 by
VAL Consulting Limited, an independent professional
valuer, by reference to recent market transaction prices
and quotations from fish dealers, with adjustments made
to market prices to reflect the condition of the appraised

assets.

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24, EYEEE)

(b)

AEEETHRAZEHERNTERA
witERANEAER -

B E B R )R HE RS R R R
REEQDAREREERATE - &
MEEZRARERIHEEKABEL
EXMAEMEREERAARATAN
E—_F=RA=t+—H#ETHE"
REZXRERBIOHTERHE
RRIHRE AHHEFELFE
RBZHEBEZER

25. EZRWFIARHAMAEWRIR

Group Company
NG|

2011 2011

2 —2—F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET FAT FET

Trade and bills receivables B SR E R ERE R 188,281 164,679 - =

Less: Impairment of trade receivables - BHRNGIERE (9,690) (7,454) - —
Trade and bills receivables, net BIRNGERERRE - F 8

(note (3)) (Wi (2) 178,501 157,25 - —

Prepayments BFE 11,633 19,775 - =

Rental deposits — current portion Heke — RBHs 4,525 7,412 - —

Interest receivables JEURF 8 943 737 - 107

Other receivables Hn ks 5,898 16,788 47 2,340

201,590 201,937 47 2,447

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on letters of credit or documents against payment, in
some cases granting a credit period of 30 to 90 days,
except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. An ageing analysis of trade and
bills receivables, based on invoice date and net of
impairment, as at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

90 days or less
91 to 180 days
181 to 270 days
271 to 365 days
Over 365 days

90 HEkIA T~
91HZE180H
181 HZE 270 H
271 HZ 365 H
38 365 H

25. BESEWREAERAEMERRE )

(a)

HEERWHRERERRE

AEFREFETEE ZBR—K
REAZFKARRE  AEFE
EENTI0BEQBAREEER
WHEFP —REZEENARBRI -
REREAKR - BIBEZEREH 5
FEU R TE & B W R R (BRI E ) 2
BRER D ATEAT -

Group

rEE
2011
—E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
163,896 132,844
6,991 18,925
3,215 2,774
1,129 1,136
3,360 1,546
178,591 157,225

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Since the Group’s trade and bills receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade and bills receivable balances.

R ER B = SR B OR WO 2 8 IR IR
HEBRBZESNZEREEER
%o RAREEESE R aHK
He HRAKEZE 5 EKFEAR
RUREBE S RAETREP @
BEAEHDZEERR AEEHL
ELE 5 EWFOR R E KRR B S
FETMERRIEMERRERZ
REZ
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Trade receivables which are less than six months past
due are normally not considered as impaired except for
a balance of HK$1,080,000 (2011: HK$496,000). As at
31st March 2012, trade receivables of HK$7,704,000
(2011: HK$5,456,000) were past due but not impaired,
as they related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The
ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables is
as follows:

25. B5BWREAREMERREA )

(a)

BESRWEER ERREE(E)

RRNER Z B 5 ek 3k8 5 B 3@
B TR ALERE BOE
#1,080,000%8 jo(= & — — F ¢
496,00078 7T ) RIB Bl oh o R ==
——F=A=+—H " 7,704,000
TT(=—ZF——% : 5456,000/87T) 2
B 5 W SRIEE B BB I R E
TR EEE S EIKRIES R D
LW EHRBHEZBLRF © #%
EE S EWFIE R EWRRIR 2 BRER
DHTMT ¢

Group
rEE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Over 6 months and up to 9 months 61EA=9{@A 3,215 2,774
Over 9 months HBE9 @A 4,489 2,682
7,704 5,456

As at 31st March 2012, trade and bills receivables of
HK$9,690,000 (2011: HK$7,454,000) were impaired and
fully provided for. The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to certain fish farmers, which are in
unexpected difficult economic situations. The ageing of
these receivables is as follows:

R-_E——-—=/8=+—8"
9,690,000/ (= & — — F:
7,454,000/ 7T ) 2 B 5 & W 5K 1A
Ko 8 U 22 15 (3R Uk B 3 2 2B H 1%
o @RI HRRE EBRRIEEE
HRETRABAKLERE &R
F o S RINFIB Z Rk DT ¢

Group

AEH
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Less than 6 months 61E A A 1,080 496
Over 6 months and up to 9 months 61EA=91@A 523 886
Over 9 months B9 @A 8,087 6,072
9,690 7,454
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. ESEWREREMEWFIEE)

(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued) (a) EBESERREREREREZE)

Movements of the impairment of trade receivables are

BIRWGEREZZEEBINT

as follows:

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
At beginning of year F7) 7,454 20,775
Impairment losses reversed BB ER (1,512) (1,084)
Impairment of trade and bills B 5 EWGIE K&
receivables EWERERE 4,178 993
Receivables written off as sE A AT e 2
uncollectible FEURFRIE (640) (7,803)
Disposal of a jointly-controlled entity o HEEH B S — (5,523)
Exchange realignment RIS 210 96
At end of year FR 9,690 7,454

The creation or release of provision for impaired B8 1B FE U FR T8 2 #1542 8 ok B O]
BIABEZRA - ERHATZHE—
Amounts charged to the allowance account are AU B FRIE - RIS 4B BR 0 BR 2 3K

H— T LA -

receivables has been included in the income statement.

generally written off when there is no expectation of

recovering the amounts any further.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

AEBESERERBEREREEZ
RREEN T ES BB

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group

REE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BIT 488 —
US dollar eV 58,800 50,687
RMB AR 42,892 34,387
Japanese Yen = 76,124 71,914
Other currencies Hih g 287 237
178,591 157,225

2011/12 ANNUAL REPORT &3k



153

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A5 R MY EE
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Certain bills receivable are pledged as security for the

Group’s banking facilities. Details are set out in note 38

to the financial statements.

(b) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the

reporting period is the carrying amount of the trade and

other receivables.

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

25.

26.

B 5 BWRIA R H AR WRIE (#)
(a) EBZERWREREWRE(E)

ETRERKREBE EFIEANEBIR
TREEZER - #BHRYPERE
Bf5E 38 o

(b) REHBR HEEERBRAES
& ORI B Bt FE MR R IR 2 BRI E ©

RERBESEERARBEARAR?T
(2N
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Group Company
AEE NG|

2011 2011
—T——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FET
Cash at banks and on hand FORFERS 339,662 497,822 166,610 341,907
Time deposits EHBGER 655,261 582,143 569,496 485,440
Cash and bank balances Re RFTELR 994,923 1,079,965 736,106 827,347
Less: Pledged bank deposits - BEBBAIER (85,509) (96,416) - —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER 909,414 983,549 736,106 827,347

At 31st March 2012, the effective interest rate on short-term
bank deposits was approximately 0.68% (2011: 0.42%) per

annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 29 days

(2011: 43 days).

At 31st March 2012, the pledged deposits were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities and the effective
interest rate on pledged bank deposits was 3.69% (2011:
2.37%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity
of 240 days (2011: 335 days).

R-ZZE——F=A=+—H  EHR]T
FTRZERENELNR0.68% (ZF——
F:0.42%) o IWEFR 2 FHEIEER S
29B(=ZZF——% : 43H)

R-ZT——H=A=+—8 2 BHEFEXK
ERERREBRTMECERR - B
BHBITERZERFRNER3.69% (=
T——F :237%) - WEFHRZFHEIH
HIR & 240 H(=ZF——4% : 3350) o
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the following

26.

FR#E)

Be RIRITRESRA TSI B R ENL

ReRkREEEEERCEART

currencies:
Company
NG|

2011 2011
T—fF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn FAT FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 658,293 745173 646,095 737,754
US dollar XL 151,753 110,847 90,011 89,593
RMB ARE 76,972 116,458 - —
Japanese Yen R 83,927 105,318 - -
Other currencies Hih g 23,978 2,169 - —
994,923 1,079,965 736,106 827,347

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$76,972,000 (2011: HK$116,458,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

REHRER - AEBUARESEZRS
KR 1T /576,972,0008 (=T ——
116,458,000 L) - AR B
HEBRAEMER - AW - REFEAH
INEBEIGHI MR SERGESER
T ARERETEEREETINEER 2
IRITIHAREHIRAEME o
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31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL

27. BZ&

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each Preference shares of HK$0.01 each

BR.01 BT EBR FR0.01 BT 2BER
Ordinary Preference
Number share Number share
of shares capital of shares capital Total
RH#E ERRRA RHO#E BERRA ag
000 HK$'000 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET TET
Authorised: ETE
At 31st March 2011 and 2012 RIZ——FR-2-—%
=A=1-H 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Issued: B®
At 1st April 2010, RZE-ZTEMA-H -
31st March 2011 and “2—%=A=1-H
1st April 2011 k=ZF——FMA—-H 13,596,763 135,968 - - 135,968
Cancellation of shares repurchased w352 BB (D (130,804) (1,308) - - (1,308)
At 31st March 2012 RZZ-Z§=ZA=1-H 13,465,959 134,660 - - 134,660

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA
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28. RESERVES 28. f#fE
Group AEE
Retained
Investment Cumulative profits/
revaluation translation ~ (accumulated
Share  Contributed reserve Treasury  adjustments losses)
premium surplus REEf shares BHEY  REEA/ Total
RtRE BaEs i EiR g (2iER) L]
Notes HK§000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
i FET Fér FéT T FAT Fér FET
Balances at 1st April 2010 W=E-EMA-RER 2,009,462 8,984 1575 - (9,884) (139,170) 1,870,967
Proftfor the year EW\J - - - - - 2189 21892
Available-for-sale financial assefs: W%EMQF
Changes in fair value (note 21) CLyllik - - 24 - - - 24
Reclassification adjustments for gains R
included in the consolidated income bl i ﬁﬁdi%ﬁ iE
statemen as  resultof the disposal % - - (676) - - - (676)
Currency tianslaton differences: ShaEE:
Reclassifcation adjustments for exchange R ERFEHEREY
differences upon the disposal of a ointy- ERZEELENDE
controlled entity % - - - - 50,420 - 50,420
Curency translation diferences of foreign K2 EREL
aperations =8 - - - - (19.097) - (19,097)
Total comprehensive incomelloss) for the year  ER2ENE/(BE)28E - = (432) - 31,383 21892 52,843
Cancelafion of share premium and elimination ~ FEERNAERERZHER
of accumulated losses (a) (2,017 746) 177512 - - - 242,621 -
Share repurchase BERA (b) - - - (1.264) - - (1.264)
Special dividend (note 13) SHREME ) - (543,871) - - - - (543,871)
Reclassifcafion 5inE 8,284 = - = - (8.284) -
Balances at 31st March 2011 and N=F--%=A=1-AR
1st April 2011 Z5--ERA-BER - 1,240,238 1143 (1,264) 21,499 117,059 1,378,675
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (241,061) (241,061)
Available-for-sale financial asses: Eﬁﬁmﬂﬁé
Changes in fair value (note 21) Mt - - (443) - - - (443)
Reclassifcafion adjustments for gains i
included in the consolidated income pd Wi%ﬁz
statement as a result of the disposal #% - - (700) - - - (700)
Curtency translafion differences of foreign ~~ BANEHK 2 E¥ER
aperations = - - - - 152 - 152
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) for the year  ER2ENE/(BE)28 - - (1,143) - 7529 (241,061) (234,675)
Share repurchase EERA (b) - - - (4,428) - - (4.428)
Cancelafion of shares repurchased HEERERA (b) - - - 5,488 - (4,409) 1079
Belances ai 315t March 2012 RoB-—EZATi-RuEY - 120023 - (204) B8 (BAY) 114050
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28. RESERVES (continued)

28. f#tE#)

Company AATH
Share Contributed Treasury  Accumulated
premium surplus shares losses Total
RAEE B4R E7R R EE Mg
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FET FETL FET FiE FET
Balances at RZZE-ZFWA—-AH
1st April 2010 LR 2,017,746 8,984 (242,621) 1,784,109
Loss for the year and total ~ FREERENZE
comprehensive loss for the B2 &E
year — — — (32,693) (32,693)
Cancellation of share RinEEFEK
premium and elimination BHRBE
of accumulated losses (a) (2,017,746) 1,775,125 — 242,621 —
Share repurchase BERH (b) - = (1,264) - (1,264)
Special dividend (note 13)  BRIRE (A2 13) — (543,871) — — (543,871)
Balances at 31st March 2011 R=Z——%
and at 1st April 2011 ZA=+-HEk
“Z——%NA-A
ikt - 1,240,238 (1,264) (32,693) 1,206,281
Loss for the year and total ~~ ERBRRERZE
comprehensive loss for the  EREE
year - - - (66,742) (66,742)
Share repurchase BERG (b) - - (4,428) - (4,428)
Cancellation of shares T HEERG
repurchased (b) - - 5,488 (4,409) 1,079
Balances at RZZ—Z%
31st March 2012 ZRA=t—-Bz&#H — 1,240,238 (204) (103,844) 1,136,190
(a) During the year ended 31st March 2011, share premium (a) REBE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIt

amounting to HK$2,017,746,000 was cancelled and
transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. The contributed surplus was then used
to eliminate the then entire balance of accumulated
losses amounting to HK$242,621,000. In the opinion of
the directors, the cancellation of the share premium,
which was approved by a special general meeting
held on 1st December 2010, provided more flexibility
to the Company to make distribution out of contributed
surplus to its shareholders. A special dividend of
HK$543,871,000 was subsequently declared to the
shareholders of the Company (note 13).

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA

FE »2,017,746,000 78 7T 2 19 34
BEIHREBEARRZEMR
AR - BB RHBZEAEEREER
242,621,000 BT 2 & R BB
H-BERE N_T—THF+—
A—BE1ITZ2REFARE L#E
ZHEERMNAE REAARRHEE
RNEM  UEBEHRRAARRE
HAK e RAFHEREARRE IR
543,871,000 7 7T 2 %5 Al B B (B 5%

13) ©
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28. RESERVES (continued)

Company (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31st March 2012, the Company
repurchased a total of 117,614,000 (2011: 18,360,000)
ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange and 130,804,000 shares (2011: Nil) were
cancelled by the Company. Upon the cancellation
of the 130,804,000 shares repurchased, the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value of HK$1,308,000. The premium paid on
the repurchase of the shares of HK$4,409,000,
including transaction costs, was charged to
the accumulated losses of the Company. As at
31st March 2012, 5,170,000 (2011: 18,360,000) ordinary
shares were repurchased but not yet cancelled by the

Company.

28. f#fE)
ERAR(#E)

(b)

RBE-—ZT ===+ —H
IEFEE ARRRBERXFERAS
#117,614,000 (= & — — F :
18,360,000 % ) AN 2 7] & 3@ AL -
+£$5 130,804,000 X (=& ——
& T) o 44 130,804,000 & fE [E]
Bpte  RARZEBTRARE
18 1,308,000 3 T ip 2> o BE B %15
B BT X 14 2 % B 4,409,000 7 7T -
BEXZGHAE  BEAAXRAZRET
EREPHR - R —Z—F=A
=+—H ' ARAEEES5,170,000
B (== ——4 : 18,360,000 % ) &
AR AR Y o

29. BORROWINGS

Borrowings are analysed as follows:

2011

—E——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Bank and other borrowings (note (a)) RITREMBEE (M (a) 338,704 246,176
Finance lease obligations (note (b)) R BT EAYE (AT (b)) 6 27
Total borrowings EEREE 338,710 246,203
Less: Current portion R mENE S (328,796) (234,300)
Non-current portion ERBED 9,914 11,903
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29. B8 (&)
(a) Bank and other borrowings (a) MRITRHEMEE
Group
REHE
2011
—T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Non-current: FERED :
Bank loans — secured IRITER — FEH 9,914 11,897
9,914 11,897
Current: RE
Discounted bills with recourse — AREEMT B RERE
secured — HEH 572 1,274
Trust receipt loans — secured EEBEER — FEF 121,189 73,078
Bank loans — secured RITER — BIKA 162,711 146,119
Bank overdrafts — secured wITEX — HHEA — 846
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EIEKA 40,926 9,517
Mortgage loans — secured RIBER — BEA 914 1,066
Other loan — secured HithER — HEH 2,478 —
Other loan — unsecured HER — EIKH — 2,379
328,790 234,279
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMEERE 338,704 246,176
The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings BITREMEE ZEEED AT
are denominated in the following currencies: B RE
Group
REH
2011
—E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 23,618 33,780
US dollar X7 198,735 117,650
RMB AR 108,774 94,746
Japanese Yen H7t 7,577 —
338,704 246,176
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)

()

Bank and other borrowings (continued)

The effective interest rates (per annum) at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

At 31st March 2012
R=%--%§=A=1-A
Hong Kong

dollar US dollar RMB
B ES N

Discounted bills with HANBRRERE
16COUrse - 23%24% -
Trust receipt loans EREER - 24%41% -
Bank loans REH 1.8%4.8%  3.9%5.0%  7.1%7.5%
Mortgage loans &EEH 2.8% - -
Other loan EEH - — interest free
%8

29.

Japanese
Yen

The carrying amounts of all bank and other borrowings

EmE®)
(a)

ROTREMBEEE)

REHRIRZ BREMEGRF) A0
T

At 31st March 2011

R=F-—%=f=1-H
Hong Kong Japanese
dollar US dollar RMB Yen
BT eI ARH A
- 2.25% - -
— 3.2% — -
1.6%-6.4% 41%  6.1%-6.2% —
2.8% - - -
— — 8.64% —

HRMERAZEEYAEKN - BAA
Bz

approximate to their fair values, as the impact of RITREME BEmEEAEAL
discounting is not significant. BERE -
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Bank borrowings repayable: IRITIEE AR AT HREEE -
On demand or within 1 year BERSE A FURN 326,312 231,900
Between 1 and 2 years 1E 24 9,914 2,380
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE54F — 9,517
336,226 243,797
Other borrowing repayable: HEth g E AR AT B EER -
On demand or within 1 year RERKE 1 FELAR 2,478 2,379
2,478 2,379
338,704 246,176

As at 31st March 2012, a Group’s jointly-controlled
entity did not comply with a financial covenant which
was related to the ratio of the Group’s jointly-controlled
entity’s long term debt to earnings before interests,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation as set out in the
borrowing facility agreement with a bank. The Group’s
share of related bank borrowings of HK$8,280,000 was
recorded as current liabilities as at 31st March 2012.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s jointly-controlled entity has obtained waiver
from the bank that the bank would not request early

repayment of the loan at the end of the reporting period.

R-ZBE——F=F=+—H  X&
Bz KR E e EE R mEET
IV ZEFRmERZESEEAE
B ARG TR RHESENR
FE B WEREEATEFZ
RN RS - RE——F =
A=+—H8 A&BEEGHERET
&5 8,280,000/8 L itk ARENE
&> ARHIRE  ANEEZ HEFE
FIEEE QRITIEHRE » METT
TEHEHRHRERIREEEER -
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29. B8 (&)
(b) Finance lease obligations (b) MEHEERE
At 31st March 2012, the Group had obligations under RZE—ZF=A=+—H &%
finance leases repayable as follows: ERERERSREREZAENT
2011
—ZT——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Finance lease liabilities minimum MEREAE — &EHL :
lease payments:
— Within 1 year — 1FER 6 23
— Between 1 and 2 years —1Z 2% — 6
6 29
Future finance charges on finance REHEZ KRR EE A
leases — (2)
Present value of finance lease REREAE ZRE
obligations 6 27
The present value of finance lease BEMEREZRBENT ¢
obligations is as follows:
— Within 1 year — 1FUA 6 21
— Between 1 and 2 years —1ZE 24 — 6
6 27
30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZENREAREMENKIR
Group Company
FEE KAF
2011 2011
—F——F T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables EHRMNFERENRE 254,228 254,851 - =
Accrual for operating expenses JERHEE RS 83,150 57,563 32,956 1,461
Receipts in advance BUFR 22,863 36,559 - —
Other payables H{t TR 15,919 16,340 - —
376,160 365,313 32,956 1,461
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 30. EZENRERAEMENRED)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on BORNRBRENZRREZZAB 2
invoice date, is as follows: BRER DTN -

2011
—E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
90 days or less 90 HELAT 245,040 248,812
91 to 180 days 91HE180H 4,634 1,359
181 to 270 days 181 HE270H 538 727
271 to 365 days 271 HE 365 H 59 86
Over 365 days 38 365 H 3,957 3,867
254,228 254,851

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are B ENFIERENZIE ZEmE T

denominated in the following currencies: BHEREN

2011
—E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 10,219 10,990
US dollar =TT 103,440 118,205
RMB AR 24,424 10,637
Japanese Yen =2 112,914 113,294
Others currencies Hh g 3,231 1,725
Total R 254,228 254,851
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31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31.

fTEEmT A

2011
—T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Forward foreign exchange contracts RERINES K (ATt (a))
(note (a)) 234 856
Interest rate swaps (note (b)) =45 B (f 22 (b)) 402 233
636 1,089

Notes:

(a) The total notional principal amount of the outstanding forward

foreign exchange contracts as at 31st March 2012 was

HK$22,890,000 (2011: HK$79,490,000).

(b) At 31st March 2012, the Group had interest rate swap
agreements in place with a notional amount of HK$32,009,000
(2011: HK$11,293,000) whereby it pays interest at fixed rates
ranging from 3.95% to 5.00% (2011: 2.25% to 3.45%) and
receives interest ranging from LIBOR plus 2.0% to LIBOR plus
3.0% (2011: LIBOR plus 1.2% to LIBOR plus 1.5%) on the

notional amount.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREGIZBERAA

HiaE -
(a)

(b)

R=ZZE—=—F=A=+—H ' KBITZEH
INEE H 2 & E A S EH A 22,890,000
JL(=Z——4F : 79,490,000/87T) °

R=ZFE—=—F=A=+—H A5EAEH
% % £ 32,009,000 T(=ZF — —F :
11,293,000 7T ) Z F| = 4= Bt % - Rk -
HEZMAEZEERENTF 3.95% Z 5.00%
(=T — — % :225%%3.45%) * 1M W B
ZHERZEESEAMBBITRERE
M2.0% 2 mBIRTRFEFEM3.0% (==
——F RBBETREFSN2% ERA
SRITRIZEFBEINA.5%)FHE -
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32. PROVISIONS 32. B
Group FEM
Reinstatement Onerous
costs contracts Total
HRER BEEN FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(note 5.2)
(Kiat5.2)
At 1st April 2010 RZZE—ZFHA—H 3,266 — 3,266
Additional provision REINEE 450 — 450
Amount utilised during the year FABAZERE (350) = (350)
At 31st March 2011 and R-TE——%
at 1st April 2011 ZA=+—HBkK
—E——FMmMA—H 3,366 — 3,366
Additional provision REINEE 3,011 38,034 41,045
At 31st March 2012 RZZE—=
=A=+—H 6,377 38,034 44,411
Less: Current portion B RENE D (1,977) (15,287) (17,264)
Non-current portion (note 34) EREN D (MaE34) 4,400 22,747 27,147

33.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using the applicable tax rates which
are expected to apply at the time of reversal of the temporary
differences.

The movements in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as
follows:

33. EELEHIR

BEFIATRBEERBRANEREZR
BONER ERREREREREEA

ZAr

ERERIEEE(BE)FEEHUT :

2012 2011

=E-—fF —T——%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of year F1) 26,544 14,057

Recognised in the income statement RBm&RER (15,293) 1,653
Disposal of a jointly-controlled entity S kR 2 I B B

(note 36) (Hiz£36) — 9,805

Exchange realignment bE 5 A B 234 1,029

At end of year FR 11,485 26,544

Representing: R :

Deferred tax assets FREFRIEEE 12,161 27,089

Deferred tax liabilities RETIIE & & (676) (545)

Total R 11,485 26,544
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33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (to be

33.

IERERLIE ()
EWEAF AR EAARHE R EEEERNLE

recovered/settled after 12 months), without taking into BT REHBEE(BE)GER 12
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax BB 4EE) 2 e T
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Provision
Changes in of trade
fair value of Accelerated receivables
biological tax and
assets depreciation inventories Tax losses Total
EYEEZ B ERRE
ARESLE MEHRBFE RELSRE REBR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FETT FET
At 1st April 2010 NZE—TF
mH—H — (16,560) 6,324 24,293 14,057
Recognised in the RIER R R
income statement (532) 4,348 (2,532) 369 1,653
Disposal of a jointly — e EIEGEEE
controlled entity — 9,805 — — 9,805
Exchange realignment b 3 AR (13) 940 45 57 1,029
At 31st March 2011 R-T——%F
and 1st April 2011 =A=+—8k
—T——%F
mA—A (545) (1,467) 3,837 24,719 26,544
Recognised in the RIBmRER
income statement (106) 1,041 5,234 (21,462) (15,293)
Exchange realignment Rk (25) — 180 79 234
At 31st March 2012 R-_T——F=H
=+-8 (676) (426) 9,251 3,336 11,485
As at 31st March 2012, the Group had unrecognised deferred RZZE—Z—F=A=+—8 ' AEEZXK

tax assets of HK$47,707,000 (2011: HK$15,094,000), primarily
representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses (subject
to agreement by relevant tax authorities) which can be carried
forward indefinitely. The Group also has tax losses arising
in Mainland China of HK$11,837,000 (2011: HK$7,104,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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T R SE Fi T8 & EE #947,707,00078 (=
T ——4F :15,094,00087T) ' EEKH
S HESE(EAEERGHERE)Z
REHE  ZSRBEANERBESE - A%
] IR pA R B P # 2E AE B JE E5 98 11,837,000
BIL(ZZT——4 : 7,104,000/ 7T) * #
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33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33. EEKRERE)
Pursuant to the Mainland China enterprise income tax law, a RIE AR B A Z ST - RBERM
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign BXAZHIINE R ZERBIMEEE B IR 2R B
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established EEMI0% BT - ZBEREHRH_-_TZT
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from NE—A—BREMWERR=ZZZLF
1st January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31st December T A=+ —HZBEAZAF o HF
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is A B G IME B B FTE Rl AR E] A H IR
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of WE - BIAf e AR 2 TEMBRE - 5t
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% AEBEME  BAMREARAS%HK10% °
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes gt - AEE A ER T B A K 2 B
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established RAPFBHZZEENF-—A—HRBEAZAR
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from Fi ik 2 2 IR S MBI -
1st January 2008.
As at 31st March 2012 and 2011, there were no significant RZE—ZFR-ZF——F=A=+—
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities for taxes that would B AEEZHEA A &ELREGE S
be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s R EE B F BT 2 T IH - W E KRR
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities. BEERIBEE ©
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 34. HiERBAE
2011
—T——F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF FHT FEIT
Employee benefits B @A 531 438
Provision for reinstatement costs 16 /R & & 32 4,400 3,366
Provision for onerous contracts G184 ## 32 22,747 —
27,678 3,804
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

35.

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 35. BEMELE (EFA)ZBEE
OPERATIONS
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flows from RERNEKEEB 7R REFELH
operating activities: R :
2012 2011
—E—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Operating profit/(loss) RN, (E8) (219,102) 44,690
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB RERETE
equipment 26,332 37,081
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE 102 77
Amortisation of intangible assets | EERH 1,484 5,407
Amortisation of leasehold land under KEHEBE TN HELIR
operating leases and land use rights = st {5 AR B 5H 425 352
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE - BERREZ
equipment g 848 7,541
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative TESMI AR R EEE
financial instruments (Yezs) 1,032 (1,184)
Net changes in fair value of biological EMEE AR EEEFE
assets (2,031) (2,127)
Provision for impairment of intangible BB ERERE
assets 2,112 170
Write-off of intangible assets T B E WSS 1,028 —
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 FEWGRIE K HoAh FE W 5k IE
other receivables, net REEE - FE 8,117 91
Provision for impairment of property, W - BE RFERERE
plant and equipment 40,580 =
Provision for remeasurement to fair value E#atE A A B 3 E KA
less costs to sell 2B — 12,200
Provision for onerous contracts EEENEE 38,034 —
Government grants released BN BT (2,820) (232)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEECHEEZ
financial assets & (1,153) (876)
Write-down of inventories to net GFEMBRE A #EFE -
realisable value, net pEiEC] 13,985 596
(91,027) 103,786
Increase in inventories FEEM (56,344) (27,974)
Decrease/(increase) in biological assets  &¥&EmM L~ (3Eh0) 1,707 (6,130)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other & 5 EUFIB I E b fE Uk
receivables KIBR A, (38h0) (7,806) 53,843
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 &~ 3R 1E & H #b &~
payables I, CRd) 13,817 (77,607)
Increase/(decrease) in derivative PTESBmIARMm ORd)
financial instruments (1,520) 2,729
Decrease in other non-current assets HinIEme) & =R — 6,075
Increase in other non-current liabilities HAb3EmB) B FEIL N — 11
Increase/(decrease) in severance and BB KRAER
retirement benefits #n, Crd) 93 (1,002)
Receipt of government grants B R T 46 B 3,087 1,898
Net cash flows from/(used in) operations “&3EFELS (EH)Z
HemE F5E (137,993) 55,629
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

36. DISPOSAL OF A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 36. HEHLREZEHEE

ENTITY
2011
—T——F
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposal of: HETFFEE -
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 510,510
Intangible assets mEE 175,028
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHECHEE 2
Other non-current assets HM3EmeEE 2,698
Inventories ra 50,787
Trade and other receivables B 5 e GRIE K E A FE W Sk IE 124,596
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFBHIEE 100,573
Borrowings BE (197,040)
Trade and other payables B 5 FE N 5B K E b A FRIR (258,727)
Income tax liabilities FriSti B & (19,004)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEBG (9,805)
Retirement benefit obligation RINEFEE (67,324)
Derivative financial instrument PTEERMT A (7,545)
Provision for remeasurement to fair value less ETE AL ERBEERAZ
costs to sell B (12,200)
402,549
Reclassification adjustment for exchange FFAGREERRZERER
difference included in the consolidated income EFOEARE
statement 50,420
Transaction cost paid BN G 43,450
496,419
Satisfied by: LATR %I 75 22 A+
Cash WE 496,419
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

36.

37.

DISPOSAL OF A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 36. HEXFEHERE)
ENTITY
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEHAZEHERBERRERESSHER
in respect of the disposal of a jointly-controlled entity is as BZFERADITAT
follows:
2011
—E
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration BHeRE 496,419
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERSRRSFEHIEE (100,573)
Transaction cost paid BN S A (43,450)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEHFIZFIETEEBR S MRS EE
of the disposal of a jointly-controlled entity HB ZFmA 352,396
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 37. MBER

For the years ended 31st March 2012 and 2011, the Company
provided a guarantee of all obligations payable to BK
Asiapac Pte. Ltd. (“BKAP”) with respect to its branded food
operation. As at 31st March 2012, the Group’s outstanding
balance payable to BKAP amounted to HK$449,000 (2011:
HK$893,000).

As at 31st March 2012, the Company had provided
guarantees of HK$766,388,000 (2011: HK$486,700,000) with
respect to banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities. As at 31st March 2012, the
banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries and jointly-
controlled entities subject to guarantees given to banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of HK$352,363,000 (2011:
HK$154,408,000). The Company’s directors and the Group’s
management anticipate that no material liabilities will arise
from such guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of

business.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R MY EE

31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

38. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2012, the Group had banking facilities of

HK$1,204,623,000 (2011:

HK$857,899,000) from several

38. RITRE

R_FE——F=ZA=+—8 ' A&5E8X
BETRTZERLRESBMEZRITR

banks for loans and trade financing. As at 31st March 2012, & /1,204,623,000%8 T(ZF — — F
banking facilities of HK$561,002,000 were utilised by the 857,899,000 L) M =T — —_F =
Group (2011: HK$409,471,000). These facilities were secured R=+—HB ZERMECEAEEH
by: F #9561,002,000/8 t(= & — — & :
409,471,000 7T) - ZERMEN TFIHR
{EHE IR
2011
—T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 63,528 46,222
Investment property PE=EES 2,160 2,172
Leasehold land under operating leases  EEHEE N2 A E +ith
and land use rights R At fsh FA#E 12,941 10,146
Inventories FE 119,186 72,332
Time deposits aEGREE 85,509 96,416
Discounted bills receivables AL IR FE U S 1R 572 1,274
In addition to the above, these facilities were secured by: U] N == = G Ny = W =

(i) corporate guarantee of HK$766,388,000 (2011:
HK$486,700,000) provided by the Company;

(i) as at 31st March 2011 and 2012, certain of the jointly-

controlled entities’ bank loans are secured by unlimited

personal guarantees provided by the directors of the

jointly-controlled entities, pledge of properties and
a bank deposit of HK$4,000,000 (attributable to the

Group’s 40% ownership of the jointly-controlled entities)

owned by directors of the jointly-controlled entities;

(ili) government guarantee of HK$23,280,000 (2011:
HK$23,280,000) provided by the Government of the

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;

o
(i) Atz Aa ¥R 766,388,000
JT(=Z — — 4 : 486,700,000

(i) RZF——FR-_F——_F=54

TE KB HERE %\J:%’:%f%%%fﬁz
& EREAAER - KREHZER
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁzf@%&mooooo;ﬁx
(REEEER 40% < H RS EEEFE
1) ERITIFFE MATIE IR

(iy BB HF A TERE BN REH
23,280,000/ jo(= & — — 4 :
23,280,000 70 ) Z BUNHELR
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5 75 e a B &

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

38. BANKING FACILITIES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

as at 31st March 2012, a guarantee of HK$14,871,000
(2011: HK$14,276,000) (attributable to the Group’s 40%
ownership of the jointly-controlled entities) provided by
an independent guarantee company in favour of the
bank to secure the repayment obligations of the jointly-
At the
same time, a counter guarantee provided by the jointly-

controlled entities under a loan agreement.

controlled entities to this guarantee company for the
amount of the loan drawn down from the loan agreement
together with any interest, penalty, compensation and
other related fees and expenses which may be payable
by this guarantee company contemplated under the
credit guarantee provided by this guarantee company to
the bank; and

as at 31st March 2012, a corporate guarantee of
HK$45,504,000 (2011: HK$43,685,000) (attributable
to the Group’s 40% ownership of the jointly-controlled
entities) provided by an independent third party to
secure certain general banking facilities granted to the
jointly-controlled entities.

38. MITAME )

(iv)

RZE—Z—F=

A=+—R %

VNERRBARTRIZ S A 12

f#£ 14,871,000 7%
14,276,000 7% 7T

ZHEESE

REARES B
EBRE L ZHE
BEMEERAD
RIE R A AR
ERETREE
o ERMERF B

(=T — —F
) (A& E % F 40%
FEAE) 2 IR - {E
RERBHERET Z
° Hﬁﬁ ’ /\HTI%'J
AR RER - B
MRTTIREZEE
ApmARDRZE
B mER

Eﬁﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&?ﬂi P R

R-E——F=
FE=FRERQA
(=T ——%F:

A=+—H B
Y& 1% 45,504,000 78
43,685,000 7T )

(REEHAE 40% 2 LREH EERE

h) ERETH

LREHIER & T

—ARIBITRAE 21K -

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. KEMHERH
(a) As lessee (a) MEREBA
The Group leases certain of its office properties, Z’»‘E.@Fﬁilﬁ?ﬁféfﬁ TS
warehouses and shops under operating lease ETHAEYME - BERIEHE -
arrangements. The leases for these properties are EZ@%%ZE%?ETE/HEM F- 1 4 = 31
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 31 years. FA%E o
At 31st March 2012, the Group had total future minimum RZE——F=A=+—H' ' &%
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases ERBEZETAHELEHE  R®
falling due as follows: RREEREZZEHEBER T
HARR 2 H -
2011
—T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year 1FE AR 32,427 29,468
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2FEESF
(BHEEEMF) 40,216 20,411
After five years FE5FLAE 6,262 124
78,905 50,003
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 39. ReEHEZH &)

(a) As lessee (continued) (a) fEREBEANE)
In respect of the above non-cancellable operating FEMAAHELEEENS - 2
lease commitments, the following provision for onerous R THIEBE ARE :

contracts has been recognised:

2011
—EZ——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Onerous lease contracts (note 32) E1E& 4 (H1:+32)
Within one year —F A 15,287 —
In the second to fifth years, FoFEFESF(BEEEM
inclusive F) 22,747 —
38,034 —
(b) As lessor (b) {ERHAA
The Group leases its investment properties and certain AEBERBELZEHLEHELRHEEA
of its machinery under operating lease arrangements, HREMERE TS  ZEHEH
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months NFeEMAZESFIE -
to 5 years.
At 31st March 2012, the Group had total future minimum RZE—Z—F=A=+—80 ' &%
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating EiREZHERF A 2 A B
leases with its tenants falling due as follows: KEHE  RARERz&EHE
WEEN T YIEAREEIE
Group
AEH
2011
—E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Within one year 1A 325 216
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2FEFELF
(REEEMF) 471 81
796 297
During the year, the Group did not recognise any FRN - AEELEERTMRALE
contingent rentals receivable (2011: Nil). WHE(ZE—F : FT) o
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B A5 R MY EE

31st March 2012 —&2——F=A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those related party transactions as disclosed R
the Group had the

elsewhere in the financial statements,

following significant related party transactions:

40. EEEALTZRS

5

N IR R E IS
TR G5

DIRFE 2 A BN
AEBATIEZEMEALR

2011
—E——%F
Notes HK$'000
A FET
Name of related party/nature of related party  BA:EATZFE,
transaction BAEALTRSHE
Ajia Partners (HK) Limited (“APHK”) Ajia Partners (HK) Limited
(TAPHK ) (a)
— Rental expense charged to the Group — AAREBWE 2
HEEH 1,142
— Administrative services fee charged to — RAIASEKEZ
the Group TR & 498
North Asia Strategic Advisors (“NASA”) North Asia Strategic Advisors
(INASA ) (b)
— Service fees charged to the Group — AAREBEWEZ
AR 75 & 19,226
(a) During the period from 1st April 2010 to 30th September (a) R=ZZE—ZFWA—RBHE=ZFT—F

2010, certain directors of the Company were also
directors of APHK. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, both NAS and APHK were subject to common
significant influence during such period. The Group
entered into two administrative service agreements
with APHK, under which APHK provided general
administrative services to the Group during the periods
from 1st July 2009 to 30th June 2010 and from 1st July
2010 to 30th June 2011,
HK$83,000.
tenancy agreement with, inter alia, APHK for sub-leasing
of office space from 1st April 2008 to 31st March 2011
at a monthly rental of HK$190,000. The transactions
with APHK after 30th September 2010 are not disclosed

for a monthly service fee of

In addition, the Group entered into a sub-

above as APHK is no longer considered to be a related

party of the Company.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

During the period from 1st April 2010 to 30th September
2010, certain directors of the Company were also
directors of NASA. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, both NAS and NASA were subject to
common significant influence during such period. The
Group entered into a service agreement with NASA,
under which the Group had agreed to pay NASA (i) an
annual service fee of 2% of the aggregate subscription
price less aggregate amount of salaries and other
remuneration paid to certain employees of the Group
for the provision of services in capital raising, research,
investor sourcing, investment sourcing, investment
analysis or due diligence and financial advisory service
by NASA; (ii) an annual incentive fee equals to 20%
of the amount by which net assets at the end of each
financial year exceed the greater of the highest level of
the net assets of the Group and the aggregate amount
of capital drawn down and injected into the Company
arranged by NASA, compounded annually at the rate of
5%; and (iii) a placing fee of 0.5% of the gross proceeds
of placement of preference shares or any other equity
or equity-linked securities of the Group arranged by
NASA. The transactions with NASA after 30th September
2010 are not disclosed above as NASA is no longer

considered to be a related party of the Company.
Balances with subsidiaries

The current portions of balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and repayable/payable within a

year.

The non-current portions of balances with subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest free and not repayable within
one year, except for amount due from a subsidiary
of HK$23,711,000 (2011: HK$128,378,000) that bear
interest at fixed rate of 10% (2011: HIBOR plus 1% to

2%) per annum.

Balance with a jointly-controlled entity

The balance with a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured,

interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

40. BEBEATZRB(#)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RZFE—ZFONA—HEZZ—ZF
FARA=Z+HEHHE A2RET
EENANASAZEE - AQAIE
E£R5 - bR ENASAR A B
HEXHARAEATZE - A5EEHH
NASA G RIS tha @ Bt - A5E
R EBNASAZ M ()VRIEFEE - A
B RBERNASATIEH S

A MEREE RERE KB
B ook BB AE KI5 RS
MARNEEHLPIEII R zHE R
H B OBREE 2 2% ; (i) F/ELE
BE - HERSVBRFERCZEE
FEBLASEEZEEFERSK
F sk B3 NASA %2 Bk if #2 BR 3 & A AR
REIZBERBEUAESERE)Z
SR20% ' REBFSREEFTE K
(B EE - /il EEERINASA
B 75 B 2 B 2 AT ) H At BR AN 3k AR
NEMATE H TS NIBAEEE 2 0.5% ©
B NASA T B R 22N Q a2 &
AT EXTARFEER_Z—ZTF
NA=+THEBENASAEITZRS °

ELH D B 2 A Bk

BB AR 2 BB RBHS AR
I 2B RBE—ERER M
fit o

BB AR &R ZIERE I D
AEEE - R BHBBEE—FRA
BE EWK B AR Z XA
23,711,000 (= & — — & :
128,378,000/ 7t ) /B [E & A &= 10
B(ZZ——4F : ABRTRAERE
MIEZ2E)ZMHAE -

BEHEERER &R

HEAFZEHER 2 EHRASEER
RRAEBEEERY -
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31st March 2012 ZZ——F=A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

41.

(e) Key management compensation

40. BERAEALZRF (#)

() FEEEAEME

2011

—FT——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FrET FET

Salaries and allowances e KERL 6,449 6,269
Retirement benefits — defined BRIRAE R

contribution scheme — AEHFGTE 36 42

6,485 6,311

During the year ended 31st March 2012, the Company did
not have any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31st March 2011, the related
party transactions in respect of items (a) and (b) above
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing

Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than certain listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets as disclosed in note 21 to
the financial statements and derivative financial instruments
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, all
financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company
as at 31st March 2012 and 2011 were loans and receivables,

and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost, respectively.
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41.

REE-—T——F#=-A=1+—HItEE "
RNA R B ZEAR _ E TR AIE 20 ZF7
AEZBERSHFERERS - REE
—T——F=A=+—HLFE BB@L
MIFE (a) & (b) 2 BB AT 2R S
BIER EMBRAUNE20EMATEZHBERS
SIFERER S o

BRERNE S 2EMTA

BRI B 5 R MY 5 21 PRI R D A AT A
EERMEEZE T LEMBRABSRIN - AR
FMEHRMEIIRESBRARAAET
RIYNERREsSMBEZTEERT
BN AEERARFRZE——FR=
E——4=A=+—HZHMEERMEER
BB D BI85 WA R A AR
ARZERBEE -
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Principal Place of Business
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